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Spark Infrastructure
Appendix 4E

Results for Announcement to the Market
for the Financial Year ended 31 December 2016

1. Company Details

Name of entity:

SPARK INFRASTRUCTURE comprises
Spark Infrastructure Trust (“Spark Trust”) and its controlled entities.

2. Details of the reporting year

Current Year: 1 January 2016 — 31 December 2016

Previous Year: 1 January 2015 — 31 December 2015

3. Results for Announcement to the Market

Commentary on the operations and results for the year is provided in the Directors’ Report.

Percentage 2016 2015
Change A$'000 A$000

Income and Profit Summary
Total Income from Investments in Associates Down 2.5% 236,913 242,977
Total Income Down 9.9% 243,915 270,605
Profit before Loan Note Interest and Income Tax Down 10.7% 225,816 252,820
Net Profit Attributable to the Stapled Security Holders Down 7.9% 81,083 88,024
Oerra}tmg Cash Flow (including repayment of shareholder loans from Up 47.4% 305,624 207,350
Victoria Power Networks)
E:)r(nings per Stapled Security before Loan Note Interest and Income Down 21.5% 13.43¢ 17.10¢
Earnings per Stapled Security Down 19.0% 4.82¢ 5.95¢
Operating Cash Flow (including repayment of shareholder loans from -
Victoria Power Networks) per Stapled Security M 1607 1402
Underlying Income and Profit Summary*
Underlying Income from Investments in Associates Down 6.4% 236,913 252,978
Underlying Total Income Down 13.1% 243,915 280,606
Underlying Profit before Loan Note Interest and Income Tax Down 14.1% 225,816 262,821
Underlying Net Profit Attributable to the Stapled Security Holders Down 32.3% 81,083 119,680

*Explanation of Underlying Adjustments provided below
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Explanation of Underlying Adjustments for the Prior Year

The underlying income and profit summary reports the operating results of Spark Infrastructure after excluding certain non-cash and
non-operating items which do not relate to the respective period's underlying performance (Underlying Adjustments). The Underlying
Adjustments have been presented in accordance with the Australian Securities and Investment Commission (ASIC) Regulatory Guide
230 Disclosing non-IFRS financial information issued in December 2011. The Directors consider that the underlying results provide
users of these reports with a clearer explanation of Spark Infrastructure’s operating performance for the Prior Year.

In June 2015, Spark Infrastructure, Victoria Power Networks and other relevant parties signed a Heads of Agreement with the ATO to
finalise all outstanding matters in respect of the interest deductibility on subordinated loans to both SA Power Networks and Victoria
Power Networks. In respect of prior tax years, Victoria Power Networks has written off deductions and losses amounting to
$132,222,000 and Spark Infrastructure has written off $82,189,000 of net losses in respect of its investment in SA Power Networks.
As aresult, Spark Infrastructure has recorded a one-off, non-cash post tax expense item of $31,656,000 in the Prior Year.

The Directors note that Underlying Adjustments have not been made in the Current Year.

Impact on Net Profit after

Underlying Adjustments: Impact on Share of Equity Tax Attributable to
Accounted Profit Securityholders

2016 2015 2016 2015

$000 $'000 $°000 $'000

Underlying Result 145,290 171,466 81,083 119,680

ATO settlement regarding deductibility of interest on
subordinated loans:

- Reflected in SA Power Networks and Victoria Power - (10,001) - (7,001)

Networks results

- Net losses cancelled with respect to SA Power Networks - - - (24,655)
(10,001) - (31,656)

Statutory Result 145,290 161,465 81,083 88,024

4. Net Tangible Assets per Security

2016 2015
$000 $000
Net Assets 2,137,284 2,156,355
Loan Notes attributable to Security Holders 1,061,724 1,061,704
Net Assets and Loan Notes attributable to Security Holders 3,199,008 3,218,059
No. of Securities (‘000) 1,682,011 1,682,011

Net Tangible Assets per Security ($) $1.90 $1.91
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5. Details of Associates

Associate Ownership Interest Contribution to Net Profit
2016 2015 2016 2015
(%) (%) $000 $'000
Equity accounted income:
SA Power Networks 49.00% 49.00% 98,171 146,141
NSW Electricity Networks Assets 15.01% 15.01% (4,404) (354)
Holdings Trust
NSW Electricity Networks Operations 15.01% 15.01% 7,749 (476)
Holdings Trust
Sub-total 145,290 161,465
Interest income:
Victoria Power Networks 78,125 80,898
NSW Electricity Networks Operations 13,498 614
Holdings Trust
Total 236,913 242,977
6. Entities Gained/Lost Control during the Period
Not Applicable
7. Distributions
2016 2015
Cents Cents
per Total per Total
Security $000 Security $'000
Distribution Paid:
Interim distribution in respect of year ended 31 December 2016 paid on 15
September 2016 (2015: 15 September 2015):
Interest on Loan Notes 3.50 58,870 3.50 51,323
Capital Distribution 3.75 63,075 2.50 36,659
725 121,945 6.00 87,982
Distribution Payable/Proposed:
Final distribution in respect of the year ended 31 December 2015 payable
on 15 March 2017 (2015: 15 March 2016):
Interest on Loan Notes 3.55 59,711 3.55 59,712
Capital Distribution 3.70 62,234 2.45 41,209
725 121,945 6.00 100,921
14.50 243,890 12.00 188,903

Total paid and payable

The above distributions are unfranked.

The record date for determining entitlements to the distribution is 6 March 2017.
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8. Details of Distribution Reinvestment Plan

The DRP will not be in operation for the March 2017 distribution.

9. Foreign Entities

Not Applicable

Compliance Statement
Information on Audit or Review

(a) The Annual Report is based on accounts to which one of the following applies.

X The accounts have been audited. The accounts have been subject to review.
The accounts are in the process of being The accounts have not yet been audited or reviewed.
audited or subject to review.

(b) Description of likely dispute or qualification if the accounts have not yet been audited or subject to review or are in the process of
being audited or subjected to review.

-N/A-

(c) Description of dispute or qualification if the accounts have been audited or subjected fo review.

-N/A -

(d) The entity has a formally constituted audit committee.

Signed on behalf of the Board:

N

D McTagdgart RFrancis  \
Chair Managing Director

27 February 2017
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Spark Infrastructure
Annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

Spark Infrastructure represents Spark Infrastructure Trust and its consolidated entities. Spark Infrastructure RE Limited (ABN 36 114 940 984) is the
responsible entity of Spark Infrastructure Trust.

Each unit in Spark Infrastructure Trust is stapled to one Loan Note issued by Spark [nfrastructure Trust. The stapled securities trade on the Australian
Securities Exchange.
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Directors’ Report

The Directors of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited (“Spark RE” or the “Company”) as responsible entity of Spark Infrastructure Trust (the “Parent
Entity” or the “Trust") provide this financial report for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“Financial Year” or “Current Year") of the Trust and its
Consolidated Entities (“Spark Infrastructure” or the “Group”). In order to comply with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001, the
Directors report as follows:

Directors
The persons listed below were Directors of Spark RE as at the date of this report:

Dr Douglas McTaggart (appointed Chair on 20 May 2016)

Mr Rick Francis {(Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Andrew Fay

Mr Greg Martin (appointed 1 January 2017)

Ms Anne McDonald

Ms Christine McLoughlin

Ms Karen Penrose

Dr Keith Turner

Retired during Current Year
Mr Brian Scullin (retired 20 May 2016)

The Directors' qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are provided below:

Dr Doug McTaggart PhD, MA(Econ), BEc(Hons), DUniv, FAICD, SF Fin
Independent Director (since December 2015)

Dr Doug McTaggart is an independent Non-Executive Director. He sits on the boards of the Suncorp Group and chairs its Audit Committee.
He is Chair of the QIMR Berghofer Institute of Medical Research and also of Suncentral Maroochydore.

Dr McTaggart is a member of the Economic Development Advisory Panel for the NSW Government and is a member of ANU's Council. He
has advised governments, most recently was a member of the Prime Minister's Expert Advisory Panel on the Reform of the Federation and the
Northern Territory Government as a member of its Economic Development Advisory Panel. [n early 2012 he refired as Chair of the
Queensland Public Service Commission and as a member of the Queensland Public Sector Renewal Board. Dr McTaggart was also a
Commissioner on the Queensland Independent Commission of Audit.

Dr McTaggart retired as CEO of QIC in June 2012 after 14 years. Prior to this appointment, Dr McTaggart held roles including Professor of
Economics and Associate Dean at Bond University (1989-1996), and then Under Treasurer, Queensland Department of Treasury (1996-1998).

Dr McTaggart was a member of the Council of Australian Governments (“COAG") Reform Council (2007-2013) and Councillor on the National
Competition Council (“NCC”) (2000-2013).

Dr McTaggart has held various positions on industry bodies and public interest groups, including Director and Chair of IFSA (now the Financial
Services Council), President of the Economic Society of Australia, Director of CEDA, and member of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board ("AASB’).

Dr McTaggart has held the following directorships of other Australian listed enfities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
e Suncorp Group Limited 2012 to present

Mr Richard (Rick) Francis BCom, MBA, CA, GAICD
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (since May 2012)

Mr Francis has been Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Spark Infrastructure since May 2012. Mr Francis joined Spark
Infrastructure in February 2009 as the Chief Financial Officer and served in that role for three and a half years prior to becoming Managing
Director.

Mr Francis has over 17 years' experience in the Australian energy and energy infrasiructure industries. Prior to joining Spark Infrastructure he
was employed by the ASX listed gas transmission and energy infrastructure business APA Group, where he was Chief Financial Officer for
four years and by Origin Energy Limited for over eight years in a number of senior management roles including those of Group Financial
Controller and Operations Manager, Energy Trading.

Mr Francis has considerable experience in matters related to corporate strategy, development and execution, operations management,
corporate communications and investor relations, risk management, financial accounting and reporting, capital and treasury management and
taxation. He also has 15 years' experience in the chartered accounting and finance fields in Australia and the UK.
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Mr Francis was appointed as Chair of NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust (trading as TransGrid) in December 2015 and is
now Deputy Chair of TransGrid. He is also Chair of its Remuneration Committee and a member of its Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
and its Regulatory Committee.

Mr Francis has been a Non-Executive Director of SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks since 2009. He was also a member of the
Audit, Risk Management and Compliance and Remuneration Committees of each business until 6 September 2016. He did not hold any other
Australian listed entity directorships within the last three years.

Mr Andrew Fay BAgEc (Hons), AFin
Independent Director (since March 2010)

Mr Fay is a Non-Executive Director of BT Investment Management Limited and J O Hambro Capital Management Holdings Limited, a UK
company which is wholly owned by BT Investment Management. Mr Fay is also a Non-Executive Director of Gateway Lifestyle Group. Mr Fay
was previously Chair of Tasman Lifestyle Continuum Ltd and Chair of Deutsche Managed Investments Limited. Mr Fay consults fo the Dexus
Property Group Ltd in the area of capital markets and advises Microbiogen Pty Ltd, a private company which operates in the renewable energy
industry, on corporate development initiatives.

Mr Fay was Chair of Deutsche Asset Management (Australia) Limited ("DeAM”) and associated companies until 2010 following a 20 year
career in the financial services sector. During that time Mr Fay held a number of senior positions including CEO Australia, Regional CIO Asia
Pacific and CIO of DeAM. Prior to joining Deutsche, Mr Fay spent six years at AMP Global Investors working in the areas of Fixed Income,
Economics and Australian Equities. Mr Fay was also a member of the Investment Board Committee of the Financial Services Council for six
years until 2006.

From November 2006 to November 2007 he was an Alternate Director for Spark Infrastructure and was also an Alternate Director for the
Dexus Property Group from 2006 until 2009.

Mr Fay has been a Non-Executive Director of Victoria Power Networks, CitiPower and Powercor, and of SA Power Networks since 2011. He is
a member of the Remuneration Committees of each business and is Chair of the SA Power Networks Audit Committee and a member of its
Risk and Compliance Committee.

Mr Fay is a member of the ARC.
Mr Fay has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
¢ BT Investment Management Limited 2011 to present
e  Gateway Lifestyle Group 2015 to present

Mr Greg Martin BEc, LLB, FAIM, MAICD
Independent Director (since January 2017)

Mr Martin has over 35 years’ experience in the energy, utility and infrastructure sectors in Australia, New Zealand and internationally, having
spent 25 years with The Australian Gas Light Company ("AGL"), including five years as CEO and Managing Director. After leaving AGL, Mr.
Martin was CEO of the infrastructure division of Challenger Financial Services Group and, subsequenily, CEO and Managing Director of
Murchison Metals Limited.

Mr Martin is Chair of lluka Resources Limited, Deputy Board Chair of Western Power and a non-executive Director of Santos Limited. Mr
Martin is also Chair of the unlisted Sydney Desalination Plant. Mr Martin also serves as a member of the COAG Energy Council Energy
Appointments Selection Panel. He is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Management, a Member of the Australian Institute of Company
Directors and holds a Bachelor of Laws from the University of Technology Sydney and a Bachelor of Economics from the University of Sydney.

Mr Martin has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
e  Energy Developments Limited 2006 to 2015

e  Santos Limited 2009 to present

o lluka Resources Limited 2013 to present
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Ms Anne McDonald BEc, FCA, GAICD
Independent Director (since January 2009)

Ms McDonald is the Chair of WaterNSW and a Non-Executive Director of Link Administration Holdings Ltd (“Link Group”) and Speciality
Fashion Group Limited and is also Chair of the Audit Committee of the Specialty Fashion Group Limited. Ms McDonald was previously a
Director of GPT Group from 2006 to 2016, a Director of Sydney Water Corporation from 2013 to 2016 and a Director of Westpac's life
insurance and general insurance businesses from 2006 to 2015.

Ms McDonald served as a partner of Ernst & Young for 15 years until 2005. She has broad based business and financial experience, gained
through working with a wide cross section of international and local companies, assisting them with audit, transaction due diligence and
regulatory and accounting requirements. She was a Board member of Ernst & Young Australia for 7 years.

Ms McDonald has been a Non-Executive Director of Victoria Power Networks, CitiPower and Powercor since 2009. In addition, she is Chair of
the Audit Committee of Victoria Power Networks and a member of its Risk and Compliance Committee.

Ms McDonald is Chair of the ARC and a member of RemCo.

Ms McDonald has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
e GPT Group 2006 to 2016

e Specialty Fashion Group Limited 2007 to present

e Link Administration Holdings 2016 to present

Dr Keith Turner BE (Hons) ME, PhD Elec Eng
Independent Director (since March 2009)

Dr Turer possesses extensive experience in the New Zealand energy sector. He served as Chief Executive Officer of Meridian Energy
Limited from 1999 to 2008. Prior to that, he worked as a private energy expert advising a range of large corporate clients and Government. He
has previously served in a number of senior roles in establishing Contact Energy, and in the Electricity Corporation of New Zealand, and the
New Zealand Electricity Department, as well as many industry reform roles.

Dr Turner is Chair of Fisher & Paykel Appliances Limited, Chair of Damwatch Holding Ltd and a Director of Chorus NZ Limited. He was
previously Deputy Chair of Auckland International Airport Limited for 7 years and a Director for 10 years. Dr Turner was appointed to the Board
of NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust (trading as TransGrid) in December 2015 and is Chair of its Health, Safety and
Environment Committee.

Dr Turner has been a Non-Executive Director of SA Power Networks, Victoria Power Networks, CitiPower and Powercor since 2009.
Dr Turner is a member of the RemCo.
Dr Turner has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
¢ Auckland International Airport Limited 2004 to 2014
e  Chorus NZ Limited 2011 to present

Ms Christine McLoughlin BA/LLB (Hons), FAICD
Independent Director {since October 2014)

Ms McLoughlin is a Director of nib Holdings Ltd, Suncorp Group Limited and Whitehaven Coal Limited. Ms McLoughlin is also Chair of
Stadium Australia and a Director of the McGrath Foundation. Ms McLoughlin was formerly a Director of Westpac's Insurance Businesses, the
Victorian Transport Accident Commission, the Australian Nuclear Science and Technology Organisation and the Deputy Chair and Director of
The Smith Family.

She was the inaugural Chair of Australian Payments Council during 2014 and was appointed a member of ASIC's Director Advisory Panel in
September 2015.

Ms McLoughlin has over 25 years’ experience in financial services, telecommunications and professional services industries in Australia, the
UK and Asia.

Ms McLoughlin is Chair of the RemCo.
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Ms McLoughlin has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
¢ nib Holdings Limited 2011 to present
o Whitehaven Coal Limited 2012 to present

2015 to present

®  Suncorp Group Limited

Ms Karen Penrose BCom, CPA, FAICD
independent Director (since October 2014)

Ms Penrose is a Director of Bank of Queensiand Limited, Vicinity Centres, AWE Limited, Future Generation Global Investment Company
Limited (a pro bono board role), UrbanGrowth NSW and Marshall Investments Pty Limited.

Ms Penrose has a strong background and experience in business, finance and investment banking, in both the banking and corporate sectors.
She is a full-time non-executive director. [n her professional non-executive director career, she is also an experienced Audit Chair and member
of due diligence committees. Her prior executive career includes 20 years with Commonwealth Bank and HSBC and, over the eight years to
January 2014, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer roles with two ASX listed companies. Ms Penrose served Chief Executive
Women (“CEW") for six years as a member of CEW's Council and continues as a member of the advisory panel for CEW's Leaders Program,

Ms Penrose is a member of the ARC.
Ms Penrose has held the following directorships of other Australian listed entities within the last three years:

Listed Entity Period directorship held
»  Silver Chef Limited 201110 2015

o  AWE Limited 2013 to present

¢ Novion Limited 2014 to 2015

o Vicinity Centres 2015 to present

»  Future Generation Global Investment Company Limited 2015 to present

o Bank of Queensland 2015 to present
Company Secretary

Ms Alexandra Finley Dip Law, MLM

Ms Finley is a corporate governance professional with over 15 years’ in-house legal and corporate commercial expetience. Prior to joining
Spark Infrastructure, she spent almost 10 years with National Australia Bank in various senior legal and commercial roles, most recently as
Company Secretary of the MLC Group of Companies.

Ms Finley has extensive experience in the financial services sector including mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance, risk
management and regulatory compliance and has held strategic, operational and management roles. As a senior lawyer and senior associate
in private practice, her experience includes property and construction, banking and finance, workplace relations and corporate advisory.
Principal Activities

The principal activity of Spark Infrastructure during the Financial Year was investment in regulated electricity distribution and transmission
businesses in Australia.

Stapled Securities
Spark Infrastructure is a stapled structure, wherein:

e oneunitin the Trust; and
e one Loan Note issued by the Responsible Entity of the Trust

are "stapled” and are quoted on the Australian Securities Exchange ("ASX") as if they were a single security.
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The table below provides a summary of key financial performance data:
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Change Compared to 2015
Underlying Underlying
20160 2015

$000 $'000 $000 %

Income from associates
—  Share of equity profits 145,290 171,466 (26,176) (15.3)
~  Interestincome 91,623 81,512 10,111 124
236,913 252,978 (16,065) (6.4)
Gain on derivative contracts 5,772 24,295 (18,523) (76.2)
Other income — interest 1,230 3,333 (2,103) (63.1)
Total Income 243,915 280,606 (36,691) (13.1)
Interest expense — other (4,554) (3,589) (965) 26.9
General and administrative expenses (13,545) (14,196) 651 (4.6)
Profit before Loan Note Interest 225,816 262,821 (37,005) (14.1)
Interest expense — Loan Notes (118,582) (111,034) (7,548) 6.8
Profit before Income Tax 107,234 151,787 (44,553) (294)
Income tax expense (26,151) (32,107) 5,956 (18.5)
Net Profit after Income Tax Attributable to Securityholders 81,083 119,680 (38,597) (32.3)
Profit before Loan Note interest per Security (cents) 13.43¢ 17.77¢ (4.34) (244)
Operating Cash Flow( 305,624 207,350 98,274 474
Total distributions for the Current Year (cents) 14.50¢ 12.00c 2.50 20.8
Total distributions for the Current Year ($'000) 243,890 188,903 54,987 29.1

™ No Underlying Adjustments in the Current Year.
@ Includes repayment of shareholder loans.

Underlying Profit

The Underlying Profit before Loan Note Interest for the Current Year decreased by 14.1% to $225,816,000 compared to the year ended 31
December 2015 (“Prior Year”), a result of lower equity accounted profits from associates, a lower gain on derivative contracts associated with
the economic interest in DUET Group (“‘DUET"), which was fully disposed of during the Current Year, and increased net interest expense,

partially offset by increased interest income from associates and decreased operating costs.
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The following adjustments have been made to the reported results in order to calculate the underlying results:

Impact on
Net Profit after
Impact on Share Income Tax
of Equity Attributable
Accounted Profit to Securityholders
Underlying Adjustments 2016 2015 2016 2015
$000 $'000 $000 $'0001
Underlying Result 145,290 171,466 81,083 119,680
Australian Tax Office ("ATO") seftlement regarding deductibility of interest on
subordinated loans:
- Reflected in SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks results - (10,001) - (7,001)
- Net losses written off with respect to SA Power Networks - - - (24,655)
Total Adjustments - (10,001) - (31,656)
Statutory Result 145,290 161,465 81,083 88,024

(1)  Further details on the Prior Year Underlying Adjustments are provided in the ATO Tax Matters section of the Directors' Report.
Underlying Results

The underlying income and profit summary reports the operating resuits of Spark Infrastructure after excluding certain non-cash and non-
operating items which do not relate to the respective period’s underlying performance (“Underlying Adjustments”). The Underlying Adjustments
have been presented in accordance with the Australian Securities and Investment Commission ("ASIC") Regulatory Guide 230 Disclosing non-
IFRS financial information issued in December 2011,

The Directors note that Underlying Adjustments have not been made in the Current Year and that they consider the Undetlying Adjustments
made in the Prior Year provide users of these reports with a clearer explanation of Spark Infrastructure’s operating performance.

Operating Cash Flow

Operating cash flow for the Current Year, including repayment of shareholder loans from Victoria Power Networks, increased by $98,274,000
or 47.4% on the Prior Year, primarily due to increased distributions from associates. Distributions from associates include an inaugural
$44,470,000 received from TransGrid. Distribution equivalents received under the DUET related derivative contracts and associated finance
costs paid on those derivative contracts decreased in the Current Year by a net $7,264,000, reflecting Spark Infrastructure's exit of its interest
in DUET during the first half of 2016. Operating cash flow for the Current Year was also impacted by lower interest income, finance charges
on higher levels of drawn debt and higher operating costs.
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31 December

31 December

SAP ] 2016 2015 Variance Variance
ower Networks Performance (100% basis)

$000 $'000 $000 %
Distribution Revenue 739,669 831,531 (91,862) (11.0)
Other Revenue 247,135 228,627 18,508 8.1
Total Revenue 986,804 1,060,158 (73,354) (6.9)
Operating Costs (426,579) (383,916) (42,663) 1.1
EBITDA 560,225 676,242 (116,017) (17.2)
Net Capital Expenditure 285,700 315,500 (29,800) (94)

Note

Customer contributions and gifted assets revenue is recorded by SA Power Networks using the replacement cost approach to determine fair value. Spark Infrastructure makes
an adjustment to its share of equity accounted profits in relation to these customer contributions and gifted assets such that the fair value of these revenue items is effectively

nil.
SA Power Networks defersfaccrues for amounts in excess offunder the regulated revenue cap to reflect that these amounts will be returned tolrecovered from electricity

consumers in future periods via adjustments to tariffs. In the Current Year, under recovery of amounts below the regulated revenue cap have been recorded as revenue by SA
Power Networks and are reflected in the results above.

During the Current Year, Distribution Use of System (“DU0S") revenue decreased by 11.0% to $739,669,000. This decrease is in line with the
Final Determination for SA Power Networks for the new regulatory period which commenced on 1 July 2015. The Final Determination granted
SA Power Networks additional regulated revenues of $626,000,000 (across 5 years) compared with the Preliminary Determination which
existed for the first year of the current regulatory period (1 July 2015 to 30 June 2016). This additional amount does not include the impact of
any appeal outcomes or subsequent judicial review. Recovery of the difference between the Preliminary and Final Determinations commenced
on 1 July 2016 and will continue through years 2-5 of the current regulatory period. The current determination applies a revenue cap to each
year of the regulatory period so that if, in any one year, more or less revenue is recovered compared to that specified in the determination,
tariffs in the following years are adjusted to ‘true up' the recovery of revenue. Across the 2015 and 2016 calendar years, SA Power Networks
billed $15,945,000 more than the regulated revenue cap. This amount has been deferred in full as it will be returned to consumers through
future tariffs. In the Current Year, SA Power Networks recovered $3,200,000 less than the regulated revenue cap.

Current Year DUoS revenue includes $7,900,000 of service target performance incentive scheme (“STPIS") recovery relating to the
aggregated STPIS outcomes in respect of the 2013/14 and 2014/15 regulatory years. In the Prior Year, $6,500,000 of STPIS relating to the
2012/13 regulatory year was recovered. The STPIS outcome for the 2015/16 regulatory year of $26,000,000 (benefit) is expected to be
recovered in tariffs from 1 July 2017

Other unregulated and semi-regulated revenues increased by 8.1% to $247,135,000, largely reflecting an increase in asset relocation
revenues primarily resulting from road infrastructure projects, partially offset by a step down of National Broadband Network (NBN')
confracted revenues, which had included materials sales as well as non-recurring revenues due to the timing of works during the Prior Year.

SA Power Networks operating expenses increased by 11.1% in the Current Year to $426,579,000, including the significant cost impact of
major storm activity. The provision for Guaranteed Service Level (“GSL") payments to affected customers increased by $42,000,000 over the
Prior Year, while costs associated with emergency response activities increased by almost $7,000,000. The major storm events in July,
September and in particular late December 2016 accounted for around 85% of the GSL payments incurred. Operating expenses were also
impacted by a decrease in NBN related costs due to both the timing and level of NBN related activity and materials costs, decreased
vegetation management costs and various productivity and efficiency savings, partially offset by higher asset relocation related costs
compared to the Prior Year.
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31 December

31 December

Victoria Power Networks Performance (100% basis) 2016 2015 Vari;ggg Variancz/e

$000 $000 °
Distribution Revenue 900,095 944,727 (44,632) (4.7)
AMI Revenue 108,246 109,250 (1,004) (0.9)
Other Revenue 171,887 136,857 35,030 25.6
Total Revenue 1,180,228 1,190,834 (10,606) (0.9)
Operating Costs (396,143) (368,175) (27,968) 7.6
EBITDA 784,085 822,659 (38,574) (4.7)
Net Capital Expenditure 406,600 466,300 (59,700) (12.8)

Note

Customer contributions and gifted assets revenue is recorded by Victoria Power Networks using the replacement cost approach to determine fair value. Spark Infrastructure
makes an adjustment to its share of equity accounted profits in relation to these customer contributions and gifted assets such that the fair value of these revenue items is
effectively nil.

Victoria Power Networks defers/accrues for amounts in excess offunder the regulated revenue cap to reflect that these amounts will be returned to/recovered from electricity
consumers in future periods via adjustments fo tariffs. In the Gurrent Year, amounts in excess of the regulated revenue cap have not been recorded by Victoria Power Networks
as revenue; this is reflected in the results above,

In Victoria Power Networks Pty Ltd (*Victoria Power Networks”), during the Current Year, DUoS revenue decreased by 4.7% to $900,095,000.
This decrease is reflective of Victoria Power Networks' new 5-year regulatory period, which commenced 1 January 2016. Victoria Power
Networks operated under the less favourable parameters set under its Preliminary Determination in the Current Year, being the first year of the
new regulatory period. Not including the impact of any appeal outcomes, the Final Determination granted Victoria Power Networks additional
revenues of $180,000,000 (across 5 years) over the Preliminary Determination. Recovery of this ‘true-up’ commenced on 1 January 2017
and will continue through years 2-5 of the current regulatory period. From 1 January 2016, Victoria Power Networks has operated under a
regulated revenue cap arrangement and has billed $9,700,000 in excess of the cap in the Current Year, which has been deferred in full.
Current Year DUoS revenue also included a favourable impact from the reversal of a 2015 provision against revenue of $9,000,000 in respect
of certain regulated revenue pass through matters.

Current Year DUoS revenue was reduced by an $11,000,000 penalty relating to the 2014 regulatory year STPIS outcome. The STPIS
outcome for the 2015 regulatory year of $17,900,000 (benefit) is expected to be recovered in tariffs from 1 January 2017. AMI related revenue
decreased by 0.9% to $108,246,000 in the Current Year, largely reflecting the impact of the depreciating AMI Regulatory Asset Base (‘RAB").

Other unregulated and semi-regulated revenue increased by 25.6% to $171,887,000. Revenue earmned by BEON Energy Solutions (formerly
Powercor Network Services) from the Ararat wind farm and Yarra Trams projects accounted for an increase of approximately $27,000,000 in
revenue over the Prior Year, while approximately $20,000,000 was received in the Current Year in respect of a one-off reimbursement of
certain tax-related costs incurred in prior years.

Victoria Power Networks operating expenses increased by 7.6% to $396,143,000 over the Prior Year. In the Current Year a change in
accounting policy was adopted in respect of the capitalisation of certain corporate overhead costs for both statutory reporting purposes and
regulatory revenue setting purposes, effective from 1 January 2016. The change accounted for an increase in operating costs over the Prior
Year, during which $53,900,000 of relevant costs had been capitalised. Third party unregulated activities increased costs incurred in the
Current Year, however these were more than offset by World CLASS efficiency program savings. As at 31 December 2016, the annualised
savings versus a 2013 base line either delivered or identified for delivery arising from the World CLASS program exceed $167,000,000 per
annum in aggregate across both capital and operating expenditure. Of the savings identified, $139,000,000 had been delivered by 31
December 2016 with the remainder due to be delivered during 2017.
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31 December

TransGrid (100% basis) ;g;g
Transmission Revenue 784,605
Unregulated Revenue 51,248
Other Revenue 2,605
Total Revenue 838,458
Operating Costs {182,835)
EBITDA 655,623
Net Capital Expenditure 206,400
Note

Amounts in excess of the regulated revenue cap are recorded by TransGrid as revenue in the Current Year. Spark Infrastructure makes adjustments to its share of equity
accounted profits in order to reflect that these amounts will be retumed to electricity consumers in future periods via adjustments fo tariffs. These adjustments are reflected in
the table above on a 100% basis.

The following performance review of TransGrid excludes 2015 results on the basis that TransGrid's financial results for the period from acquisition (16 December 2015) to 31
December 2015 are immaterial to Spark Infrastructure.

During the Current Year, Transmission Use of System (“TUoS") revenue was $784,605,000. From the commencement of its current
regulatory period on 1 July 2014, TransGrid has operated under a regulated revenue cap arrangement. In the regulatory year ended 30 June
2016, TransGrid under recovered revenue compared to the regulated revenue cap by $7,852,000, which is being recovered via tariffs from 1
July 2016. This amount has been accrued and recognised as revenue at the Spark Infrastructure level. In the first six months of the
regulatory year commenced 1 July 20186, TransGrid has billed $15,741,000 in excess of the cap, which has been deferred in full at the Spark
Infrastructure level.

Current Year TUoS revenue also included $6,500,000 of STPIS benefit relating to the 2014 calendar year, recovered via tariffs from 1 July
2015. Recovery of a $12,100,000 STPIS benefit earned in the 2015 calendar year commenced on 1 July 2016, with $6,050,000 recovered in
the Current Year, bringing the aggregate STPIS benefit in the Current Year TUoS revenues to $12,550,000. The STPIS outcome for the 2016
calendar year of $15,500,000 (benefit) is expected to be recovered in tariffs from 1 July 2017.

Unregulated revenue for the Current Year was $51,248,000 and included telecommunications of $6,400,000, property services of $4,700,000
and $40,148,000 of infrastructure services. The majority of infrastructure services revenues are from transmission connection contracts for
various wind farms, solar farms and mines. The remainder is from line modifications (asset relocations) and associated consulting advice.
Revenues from fransmission connection agreements entered into with customers during late 2016 will generate additional revenues
progressively from early 2018 onwards following construction completion with construction timeframes typically ranging between 12-24
months.

Operating expenditure for the Current Year was $182,835,000, including costs relating fo both regulated and unregulated activities. Costs for
the Current Year included various items incurred in respect of the transition of TransGrid from public to private ownership and ongoing
business improvement activities.

Capital Expenditure and Regulatory Asset Base

The businesses in Spark Infrastructure’s investment porifolio continue fo invest in the augmentation and renewal of their networks, maintaining
asset performance and reliability. During the Current Year, total regulated capital expenditure of $285,700,000 was invested on a net basis
(i.e. net of customer contributions) by SA Power Networks, a decrease of 9.4% from $315,500,000 in the Prior Year. Victoria Power Networks
invested $406,600,000 on a net basis, a decrease of 12.8% from $466,300,000 in the Prior Year. During the Current Year, fotal capital
expenditure of $206,400,000 was invested by TransGrid, comprising regulated capital expenditure of $175,900,000 and unregulated capital
expenditure of $30,500,000. Net reguiated capital expenditure is added to the RAB of each of the businesses, generating prescribed
(regulated) revenue in future periods. Unregulated capital expenditure invested by TransGrid during the Current Year will result in increased
unregulated revenues from mid-2017 onwards. The revenue will increase progressively as each of the projects complete (from mid-2017 to
mid-2019), and will then escalate with inflation over the 25-30 year contract periods.

The estimated RAB for SA Power Networks as at 31 December 2016 was $3,953,000,000 (100% basis), an increase of $24,000,000 or 0.6%
over 31 December 2015. The estimated RAB for Victoria Power Networks as at 31 December 2016 was $5,734,000,000 (100% basis), an
increase of $187,000,000 or 3.4% over 31 December 2015. The estimated RAB for TransGrid as at 31 December 2016 was $6,284,000,000
(100% basis), a decrease of $63,000,000 or 1.0% on 31 December 2015, as a result of actual capital expenditure and inflation during 2016
being less than the forecast capital expenditure and inflation contained in the determination for that year as well as a ‘true-up’ of actual versus
estimated regulatory capital expenditure incurred during 2015.
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Inflation has been lower in the Current and Prior Years than the estimate of expected inflation adopted to determine revenue and estimate
RAB growth in the AER’s determinations. The actual inflation has been between 1.5% and 1.7% over this period, leading to lower than
expected nominal growth in RAB.

Spark Infrastructure’s aggregate share of its investment portfolio RAB balances was $5,690,000,000, an increase of $94,000,000 or 1.7% over
31 December 2015.

Divestment of Economic Interest in DUET

During the first half of 2016, Spark Infrastructure divested its economic interest in DUET, following completion of a review into the holding. The
derivative contracts held with Deutsche Bank were unwound via a staged process, with no remaining financial assets or liabilities in respect of
the economic interest being held at 31 December 2016.

Distribution equivalents of $22,952,000 were received in relation fo the economic interest during the Current Year and associated finance
costs of $7,743,000 were paid. In addition, transaction costs of $4,031,000 were incurred in the Current Year, which largely reflected the cost
of cancelling 63,780,000 call options under the DUET related derivative contracts.

Investment proceeds of $210,708,000 were received following completion of Spark Infrastructure’s divestment of all derivative contracts during
May and June 2016, resulting in a net surplus of $4,297,000 over the cost of the economic interest. These proceeds were used to bring
forward repayment of Spark Infrastructure’s drawn debt into the Current Year.

A net gain on derivative contracts of $5,772,000 has been recorded in the Current Year.

Corporate Expenses, Loan Note Interest and Tax Expense

Corporate expenses decreased $651,000 over the Prior Year to $13,545,000. Interest expense and borrowing costs increased in the Current
Year from $3,589,000 to $4,554,000, reflecting interest incurred on drawn debt during the first half of the Current Year. In the Prior Year only
commitment fees were incurred on Spark Infrastructure’s fully undrawn senior debt facilities.

Loan Note interest payable to Securityholders increased by $7,548,000 to $118,582,000, due fo the additional Loan Notes issued during the
Prior Year via an Entitlement Offer. Underlying income tax expense, which is non-cash, decreased by $5,956,000 to $26,151,000 for the
Current Year.

Cashflow

Spark Infrastructure’s cashflow from operating activities for the Current Year was $240,650,000, 16.1% higher than the Prior Year. After
adding $64,974,000 of distributions from Victoria Power Networks received by way of repayments of shareholder loans and included in
investing activities, Spark Infrastructure’s cashflow from operating activities (including all distributions received from associates) was
$305,624,000 or 47.4% higher than the Prior Year.

Distributions received from SA Power Networks were $119,316,000, up $5,091,000 or 4.5%. Victoria Power Networks commenced paying
additional distributions by way of the repayment of shareholder loans in the Current Year, with $64,974,000 repaid to Spark Infrastructure in
the Current Year. Shareholder interest received from Victoria Power Networks was $79,577,000, down $2,651,000 due to the reducing
shareholder loan principal balance. In total, distributions from Victoria Power Networks were $144,551,000 in the Current Year, up
$62,323,000 or 75.8% over the Prior Year. This increase reflected the strong operating performance of Victoria Power Networks, including the
strong benefits flowing from the World CLASS efficiency program. TransGrid commenced paying distributions in the second half of the
Current Year, with a total of $44,470,000 (comprising loan note interest of $14,112,000 and ordinary distributions of $30,358,000) received.

Cash inflows from interest received were $1,061,000 for the Current Year, $2,733,000 lower than the Prior Year reflecting lower levels of
surplus cash on deposit. Cash outflows for interest paid on senior debt were $4,375,000, up $1,695,000 on the Prior Year, reflecting
commitment fees and interest paid on debt drawn during the first half of 2016.

Payment of residual issue costs of $1,733,000 relating to the 2015 Entitlement Offer occurred during the Current Year. Spark Infrastructure
paid a final distribution for the year ended 31 December 2015 of $100,921,000 to Securityholders in March 2016, representing 6.00 cents per
security (“cps”). An interim cash distribution of $121,945,000 representing 7.25 cps was paid in September 2016 in relation to the six months
ended 30 June 2016.

Debt, Gearing and Hedging

Spark Infrastructure has no drawn debt as at 31 December 2016. Spark Infrastructure has bank debt facilities of $250,000,000, with
$225,000,000 maturing in November 2018 and $25,000,000 maturing in November 2020. A total of $205,000,000 of these available facilities
were drawn down during December 2015 in order to part fund Spark Infrastructure’s investment in TransGrid. A further $15,000,000 was
temporarily drawn during the Current Year, prior to the facilities being fully repaid. Spark Infrastructure had cash on hand at 31 December
2016 of $95,985,000 {excluding $5,000,000 of cash held for Australian Financial Services Licensing purposes).

Spark Infrastructure targets at least a BBB/Baa2 equivalent credit rating for each of the assets in its portfolio. SA Power Networks’ net debt to
RAB was 71.4%, down from 71.9% at 31 December 2015. Victoria Power Networks' net debt to RAB was 72.4%, down from 73.8% at 31
December 2015. TransGrid's net debt to RAB was 88.4%, up from 86.5% at 31 December 2015. Based on current business conditions, Spark
Infrastructure expects that the gearing of SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks will move back up towards but not above the 75%
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net debt to RAB Jevel over the medium term. TransGrid gearing is expected to remain above 85% but below 90% on a net debt to RAB level,
in line with its credit rating. Exact gearing levels over time will be impacted by numerous factors, including actual inflation outcomes, which
have been relatively low over the past couple of years.

Spark Infrastructure requires that the assets in its portfolio are fully hedged against currency fluctuations on foreign currency borrowings. In
terms of interest rate hedging, as at 31 December 2016, SA Power Networks, Victoria Power Networks and TransGrid had 100%, 96% and
75% of gross debt hedged respectively, with interest rate swaps with terms between one and ten years in place and some fixed rate debt in
place. This substantially limits the impact of volatility in the movement of interest rates on the financial results of these businesses and in turn
on those of Spark Infrastructure. There is currently no interest rate hedging at the Spark Infrastructure level, as there was no drawn debt as at
31 December 20186.

ATO Tax Matters

Both SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks have been subject to large business audits by the ATO. The tax matters being
reviewed as part of the audits date back a number of years. Details of these tax matters have been previously disclosed in the Spark
Infrastructure Financial Statements.

In June 2015, Spark Infrastructure, Victoria Power Networks and the SA Power Networks Partnership partners signed a Heads of Agreement
with the ATO to finalise all outstanding matters in respect of the interest deductibility on subordinated loans to both SA Power Networks and
Victoria Power Networks. As a result, Spark Infrastructure recorded a one-off, non-cash post tax expense item of $31,656,000 in the Prior
Year, disclosed as an Underlying Adjustment.

The ATO refunded $38,994,000 plus $2,359,000 of interest accrued on this amount to Victoria Power Networks following the execution of a
Deed of Settlement (incorporating the Heads of Agreement) in the Current Year,

As previously reported both Victoria Power Networks and the SA Power Networks Partnership have obtained legal advice with regard to the
ongoing matters and will continue to vigorously defend their positions. The SA Power Networks Partnership partners and Victoria Power
Networks continue to actively engage with the ATO on these matters.

Further details on the ATO matters are provided in Note 4 to the Financial Statements.

Equity and Reserves

Total Equity including Loan Notes attributable to Securityholders decreased by $19,051,000 during the Current Year to $3,199,008,000 at 31
December 2016. Net profit after tax increased retained profits by $81,083,000, while other movements net of tax included: unfavourable mark-
to-market movements in the value of interest rate derivatives held by the associates of $1,817,000; actuarial gains on defined benefit
superannuation plans of the associates of $4,958,000; recognition of share based payment amounts of $990,000 and a capital distribution paid
during the Current Year to Securityholders of $104,285,000. The mark-to-market movements and actuarial gains are non-cash impacts and
result from the application of Australian Accounting Standards.

Impairment Testing

The Directors consider the Australian Competition Tribunal's upholding of the AER’s Final Determination for SA Power Networks as a potential
indicator of impairment. Accordingly, fair value less costs to sell calculations were used to assess Spark Infrastructure’s investment in SA
Power Networks to confirm that its carrying value did do not exceed its recoverable value.

The Directors are satisfied that there is no indication that either Victoria Power Networks or TransGrid have suffered an impairment loss.

AER Performance Benchmarking

The AER released its annual benchmarking reports for the electricity distribution and transmission businesses under its jurisdiction on 30
November 2016. The benchmarking reports compare the productivity of network businesses and track changes over time. The overall
benchmarking measures are part of the suite of tools the AER uses to assess the efficiency of network businesses.

The distribution benchmarking report shows that the Victorian and South Australian Distribution Network Service Providers ("DNSPs”) are the
most productive relative to their peers. CitiPower, SA Power Networks and Powercor are respectively ranked number one, two and four among
the peer set of thirteen DNSPs. The transmission benchmarking report shows that TransGrid has significant scope for improvement under the
private ownership of the NSWEN consortium of which Spark Infrastructure is a member. TransGrid is ranked number four amongst its peer set
of five Transmission Network Service Providers. Importantly, the data is for 2015, which represents the final year of operation under
government ownership.
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Final Regulatory Determinations for SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks

In May 2016, the Australian Energy Regulator ("AER”) released the Final Determination for CitiPower and Powercor (together known as
Victoria Power Networks) for the 5-year regulatory period commencing on 1 January 2016, This followed the AER's release of the Final
Determination for SA Power Networks’ in October 2015 for the 5-year regulatory period commencing on 1 July 2015.

SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks had been operating under the parameters set by the AER's Preliminary Determinations for
the first year of the 5-year regulatory periods. In years 2-5 a ‘true-up’ will occur to recover the difference in revenue between the Preliminary
and Final Determinations on a no disadvantage basis. As previously disclosed, SA Power Networks received an additional $626,000,000 in its
Final Determination relative to its Preliminary Determination for the 5-year regulatory period. Similarly, CitiPower and Powercor collectively
received an additional $180,000,000 in their Final Determinations relative to their Preliminary Determinations for their 5-year regulatory
periods. Recovery of these additional revenues is now underway.

Regulatory Appeals

SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks (as CitiPower and Powercor) lodged appeals on various elements of their Final
Determinations with the Australian Competition Tribunal ("ACT"). On 28 October 2016 the ACT published its decision in relation to the SA
Power Networks review process. SA Power Networks sought review on gamma, return on debt transition, inflation, bushfire capital
expenditure and labour cost escalation. The ACT affirmed the AER’s decision on each matter. On 25 November SA Power Networks lodged
an application for judicial review of the ACT's decision to the Federal Court in relation to gamma, return on debt transition and labour cost
escalation. A decision is not expected untit mid-2017.

The ACT hearings on the matters raised by CitiPower and Powercor concluded on 25 November 2018. Victoria Power Networks sought review
of gamma and labour escalation. In addition, the Victorian government sought review of AMI productivity and corporate overheads (seeking a
3-year average rather than the 5-year average adopted by the AER). A decision is expected in February 2017.

TransGrid Proposal for 2018-2023 Regulatory Control Period

TransGrid is subject o a 4-year regulatory period for the current regulatory cycle, which expires in June 2018. From 1 July 2018, TransGrid
will revert to a standard 5-year regulatory period. TransGrid's regulatory reset process for the 2018 to 2023 regulatory period is underway and
its initial regulatory proposal was submitted to the AER on 31 January 2017. A summary of the main elements of the regulatory proposal is
provided in the table below:

Regulatory Period 2018-2023 TransGrid Proposal AER Guideline
Equity Beta 0.7 07

0 -
Risk Free Rate 2.24%

9 [}

Market Risk Premium 7.5% 6.5%
Return on Equity 7.49% -
Cost of Debt 10-year trailing average with transition 10-year trailing average with transition
Gamma (Imputation) 0.25 04
Net Capex over 5-Years ($2018) $1,612,000,000 -
Opex over 5-Years ($2018) $908,000,000 -
Revenue ($2018) $3,973,000,000

TransGrid has included in its proposal forecast operating expenditure at the start of the regulatory period that is more than 6% lower than
2015/16 operating expenditure and grows in line with network growth and input cost escalation consistent with the AER methodology for
forecasting operating expenditure. Capital expenditure is forecast to be significantly higher than the 2014-18 regulatory period and includes
$330,900,000 ($2018) for Powering Sydney's Future — a significant project to ensure the reliable and secure supply to the inner Sydney
region. TransGrid has adopted the AER’s approach to estimating the cost of debt and equity including a transition to the trailing average
approach. However, TransGrid has updated the estimate of the cost of equity to reflect the latest market data used by the AER which suggests
the market risk premium has increased to 7.5% and no longer supports the AER’s recent estimate of 6.5%.

Inflation Impacts on Regulated Revenues and Asset Bases

The AER has announced that it will consult on the approach to forecasting expected inflation during 2017. This is to examine and address an
anomaly in the manner in which infiation is incorporated into the calculation of revenues for use in the regulatory process for Network Service
Providers ("NSPs”) that currently results in NSPs bearing the risk of any difference between forecast and actual inflation.

[n the 2014/15 to 2017/18 regulatory period, there has been a mis-match between forecast and actual inflation that is resuiting in TransGrid
receiving significantly lower nominal revenue than what would have been allowed if actual inflation reflected the higher forecast inflation as set
out in its current regulatory determination. This is an issue which affects all NSPs and is also impacting SA Power Networks and Victoria
Power Networks.
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TransGrid calculates this lower revenue to be $110,000,000 in the first two years of this regulatory period, and estimates it could be
$170,000,000 by the end of the period.

TransGrid has submitted in its regulatory proposal that the current approach to forecasting inflation should not change without an ability to
recover revenue forgone as a result of the mis-match in prior years.

Distributions and Capital Management

Spark Infrastructure pays out distributions which are fully supported by operating cashflows. Operating cashflows are reviewed at both the
Spark Infrastructure level as well as on a look-through proportionate basis (i.e. at the investment level). Operating cashflows are reviewed
after deducting an allowance for maintaining the relevant investment's regulated asset base where applicable. Within this framework, Spark
Infrastructure continues to manage fluctuations in its working capital as efficiently as possible.

Distributions paid to Securityholders comprise interest income on the Loan Notes and can also include a capital distribution on Units and
income distributions from the Trust. A final cash distribution of 6.00 cps was paid on 15 March 2016 in relation to the six months ended 31
December 2015 and comprised 3.55 cps of interest on the Loan Notes and 2.45 cps of capital distributions.

An interim cash distribution of 7.25 cps for the Current Year was paid on 15 September 2016 and was comprised of 3.50 cps interest on Loan
Notes and 3.75 cps capital distribution.

The Board has declared a final cash distribution of 7.25 cps for the Current Year, payable on 15 March 2017, which wifl be comprised of 3.55
cps interest on Loan Notes for the period and 3.70 cps capital distribution. The full year 2016 distribution of 14.50 cps represents an increase
of 20.8% on 2015, and a standalone payout ratio of 79.8% for the Current Year.

Al distributions were unfranked and made by the Trust.

Distributions paid to Securityholders during the Current Year were:

Final 2015 distribution paid  Interim 2016 distribution Total Distributions Paid

15 March 2016 paid 15 September 2016 in 2016
Cents per ) Cents per , Cents per s
security §000 security $000 security ¥000
Interest on Loan Notes 3.55 59,712 3.50 58,870 7.05 118,582
Capital distribution 245 41,209 3.75 63,075 6.20 104,284
Total 6.00 100,921 7.25 121,945 13.25 222,866

Distributions paid and payable to Securityholders in respect of the Current Year were:

2016 2015
Cents $000 Cents $1000
per security per security
Interim distribution paid 7.25 121,945 6.00 87,982
Final distribution proposed 7.25 121,945 6.00 100,921
Total 14.50 243,890 12.00 188,903

Spark Infrastructure has a Distribution Reinvestment Plan (“DRP”). The Directors regularly assess the operation of the DRP and have
determined that the DRP will remain suspended.
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QOutlook

The Directors have reaffirmed distribution guidance for 2017 and 2018 of 15.25 cps and 16.0 cps, representing annual growth of 5.2% and
4.9% respectively, subject to business conditions.

Spark Infrastructure currently expects distributions from its investments in 2017 to be lower than 2016, As previously disclosed, TransGrid has
a significant and growing pipeline of accretive unregulated infrastructure connection opportunities which are of larger value and arising earlier
than previously forecast. This investment oppertunity may require additional retention of cash by TransGrid to fund this growth. The
construction period for these projects varies, but is generally between 1-2 years before completion and operations commence. Spark
Infrastructure is working with its consortium partners and the business on various funding plans for these exciting opportunities. Spark
Infrastructure will report developments to the market as and when they are agreed.

CPI measurements during 2016, which are used as inputs by the AER to calculate annual revenues (i.e. annual tariff adjustments) and RAB
escalation, ranged between 1.5% and 1.7%, significantly below long term averages and significantly below the AER forecasts used in the
businesses’ regulatory determinations. The current outlook for CPI for the shorter to medium term remains relatively low, which may have the
effect of constraining previous forecasts of RAB growth and tariff increases. The AER has recently announced a review of the treatment of
inflation in the regulatory framework and regulatory revenue models. Spark Infrastructure and its businesses will actively participate in this
review.

Events Occurring after Reporting Date

The Directors of Spark Infrastructure are not aware of any other matter or circumstance not otherwise dealt with in this financial report that has
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations or the state of affairs in the period since 31 December 2016 up to the date of this
report.

Information Applicable to Registered Schemes

Spark RE is the responsible entity of the Trust. Spark RE does not hold any stapled securities. The number of stapled securities at the
beginning and end of the Current Year is disclosed in Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Changes in State of Affairs

Except as otherwise disclosed, there was no significant change in the state of affairs of Spark Infrastructure during the Current Year.

Environmental Regulations

Spark Infrastructure is not subject to any environmental regulations. However, SA Power Networks, Victoria Power Networks and TransGrid
are subject to various environmental regulations. The Directors are not aware of any material breaches of those regulations by either SA
Power Networks, Victoria Power Networks or TransGrid.

Non-Audit Services

Details of amounts paid or payable to the external auditor for non-audit services provided during the Current Year are outlined in Note 14 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors are satisfied that the non-audit services provided by the auditor are compatible with the general standard of independence for
auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The Directors are of the opinion that the services as disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements do not compromise the external auditor's independence, based on advice received from the ARC, for the following
reasons:

« non-audit services have been reviewed and approved to ensure that they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of the auditor, and
comply with Spark Infrastructure’s policy on auditor independence; and

¢ none of the services undermine the general principles relating to auditor independence as set out in Code of Conduct APES 110, “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” issued by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, which includes reviewing or
auditing the auditor's own work, acting in a management or decision-making capacity, acting as an advocate or jointly sharing economic
risks and rewards of Spark Infrastructure.
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Indemnification of Officers and Auditors

The Directors and -former Directors of Spark RE and the officers of Spark RE are indemnified under Spark RE's constitution against all
liabilities to another person that may arise from their position as directors or officers of Spark RE subject to the limitations imposed by the

Corporations Act 2001.

During the Current Year, the Trust paid a premium in respect of a contract of insurance indemnifying the Directors against a liability incurred as
such a Director to the extent permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability

and the amount of the premium.

The entities have not otherwise, during or since the end of the Current Year, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the
Trust or of any related body corporate against a liability incurred as such an officer or auditor, except to the extent permitted by law.

Options over Stapled Securities

No options have been granted over the unissued Units of the Trust or stapled securities of Spark Infrastructure.

Directors’ Meetings

The following table sets out the number of Directors’ meetings held during the Financial Year and the number of meetings attended by each
Director for which they were eligible to attend (i.e. in the case of Directors, while they were appointed and where they were not disqualified
from attending due to observation of processes to guard against any perceived conflict of interests).

During the Current Year, twelve Board meetings, five ARC meetings, seven RemCo meetings, two Investment Sub-committee meetings and
one Special Purpose Sub-committee meeting of the Company were held. References to meetings "Held” means the number of meetings a

Director was eligible to attend.

Board of Directors ARC RemCo Investment Sub-Co
Suh-Co

Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended Held  Attended

Dr Douglas McTaggart 12 12 . : 5 5 9 9 - ]
Mr Rick Francis 12 12 - - - - 2 2 - -
Mr Andrew Fay 12 12 5 5 - - 2 2 1 1
Ms Anne McDonald 12 12 5 5 7 7 . . . -
Ms Christine McLoughlin 12 19 - - ST 7 - - . .
Ms Karen Penrose 12 12 5 5 - - - - 1 1
Dr Keith Turner 12 12 - - 7 4 - . , )
Mr Brian Scullin 5 5 , - 92 2 - - - -

By agreement with the committee chairs there is a standing invitation for all Directors to attend committee mestings. In the Current Year,
Directors have attended a number of committee meetings in an observer capacity.

Auditor's Independence Declaration

The auditor's independence declaration as required under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on page 46.

Rounding of Amounts

As permitted by ASIC Class Order 2016/191 dated 24 March 2016, amounts in the Directors’ Report and the financial report have been
rounded fo the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise indicated.
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Remuneration Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2016

Dear Securityholders
On behalf of the Board we are pleased fo present our 2016 Remuneration Report which covers the remuneration arrangements for our
Executives and Non-Executive Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Over the past three years the Board has made a number of important changes to the Executive Remuneration Framework to achieve better
alignment of Execufives and Directors with the long term interests of Securityholders and fo align with Spark Infrastructure’s strategy. The
Board has also given serious consideration and taken account of feedback received from Securityholders including that received at the 2016

AGM.
The updates for 2017 mark the culmination of this period of evolution of the Remuneration Framework. Defined terms are set out in section 1

of the Report.
The key changes are set out below:
| New measures for LTI - In addition fo risk adjusted TSR, LT! will be assessed against Operating Cashflow (both standalone

and look-through). From 2017, three measures will apply fo the assessment of performance under the LTI - 50% weighting for
risk adjusted TSR + 25% for Standalone Operating Cash Flow (OCF) + 25% for Look-through OCF.

» Minimum share ownership — Under a new Executive Share Ownership Policy, the MD is required to hold 100% of base pay
in securities to be acquired over a 3-year period (50% of base pay is required for other KMPs), The Board has also established
a Non-Executive Directors Securityholding Policy requiring 100% of base fees in Securities to be acquired over 3 years (and

maintained throughout tenure).

» STl weightings ~the weighting for the financial component of STI for each of the MD and CFO is 60% of Fixed Remuneration.
For 2017, the aggregated measures relevant to TransGrid will have a 20% weighting and will include a measure for

unregulated revenue.

The Board will confinue to engage with Securityholders in an open and transparent manner in relation to its Remuneration Framework.

Ms Christine McLoughlin

Dr Doug McTaggart
Chair Chair
Spark Infrastructure Remuneration Committes
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
CONTENTS

The Directors of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited as responsible entity of Spark [nfrastructure Trust (“Trust”) present the Remuneration Report
(“Report’) for the year ended 31 December 2016 (“Current Year or “2016" of the Trust and its Consolidated Entities (*Spark Infrastructure”),
prepared in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001 (“Act’). The Report provides information on the remuneration
arrangements for Key Management Personnel (‘KMP")(), that is, Executive KMP (“Executives”) and Non-Executive Director KMP ("NEDs") for
2016, and summarises proposed changes for 2017.

The information provided in this Report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Act. This Report forms part of the Directors’
Report.

The Report covers the following:

—

Key questions regarding KMP remuneration arrangements and defined terms
2016 overview

Key Management Personnel

Executive remuneration link to business strategy

Executive remuneration policy and overview of incentive plans

Executive statutory remuneration

Employment contract key terms

Remuneration governance

© e N o gk~ W N

Non-Executive Director fees

—
=4

Additional required disclosures

MRefer to section 3 for further detail on KMP
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1. Key questions regarding KMP remuneration arrangements

In 2016 the Board, through its Remuneration and Nomination Committee (“RemCo”), revised KMP remuneration arrangements to better align
with Spark Infrastructure’s business strategy and taking into consideration feedback from Securityholders and in response to feedback
received at the 2016 AGM.

At the 2016 AGM, Spark Infrastructure received 34.43% of votes cast against our Remuneration Report resuiting in a first ‘strike’. The ‘against’
vote was recorded despite all proxy advisers for institutional Securityholders recommending that Securityholders vote ‘in favour' of the
Remuneration Report. ‘

The Board has taken the first strike extremely seriously and has undertaken a further review of the Remuneration Framework and consulted a
wide group of stakeholders. In particular, the Board Chair and Chair of the Remuneration Committee undertook an extensive program of
engagement with investors and other stakeholders throughout 2016. This has resulted in further changes to the Remuneration Framework in
20186, which will affect Executive remuneration from 2017 onwards.

This section sets out our response fo issues raised by Securityholders at the 2016 AGM in relation to the Remuneration Report and in
consuitation with investors and other stakeholders. The table below summarises the key questions and answers in relation to 2016
remuneration and the proposed changes for 2017.

 REMUNERATION FRAMEWORK

1. What changes were e Asoutlined in our 2015 Remuneration Report: Section 4, Page 29

. . o
implemented in 20167 . Short-term incentive (“STI”); the weighting of financial KPIs increased in the Managing .
Director and Chief Executive Officer's (“MD") 2016 ST! from 50% of the total opportunity to Section 5.2, Page 31

60% to recognise the importance of aligning STI outcomes to Spark Infrastructure financial Section 5.3, Page 31
performance. A portion (20%) of the financial component of the ST is specifically related to -
the performance of TransGrid Section 5.3.3, Page 33

. Deferred STI: the 2016 deferred STI was delivered as Rights (rather than cash as was our
prior approach). The change is intended to increase equity holdings of Executives and create
stronger alignment between interests of Executives with Securifyholders. (In addition,
Executives elected to take their 2015 Deferred STI in Rights rather than in cash.)

. Long-term incentive (“LTI"}: Increased weighting on LT for the MD and CFO from 20% fo
24%, and 15% to 22% of total remuneration respectively. Note, the CFO's remuneration was
rebalanced to reduce his STI from 90% to 80% and increase his LTI from 35% to 50%.

2. What portion of remuneration is

‘atrisk'? The Executives receive the following proportion of their total remuneration in STl and LTI Section 5.1, Page 30
opportunity:
. MD: 62%
o CFO: 57%

. General Counsel / Company Secretary: 50%

3. s there a minimum
Securityholding requirement for
Executives?

Commencing in 2017 the MD will be required to hold the equivalent of 100% of Fixed Remuneration Section 2.5, Page 26
in Securities, and will be required to do so within a three-year period. For other KMP, the
requirement will be the equivalent of 50% of Fixed Remuneration within a three-year period. The MD
has already met this requirement as set out in the Executive Securityholding table at section 2.5.

4, s there a minimum
geCSri?yﬁotding requirement for The Board has established a minimum Securityholding policy for NEDs, whereby NEDs must hold Section 10.5, Page 45

NEDs? the equivalent of one year's director's base fees (assessed at the later of the date of appointment or
the effective date of the policy), and will be required o do so within a period of three years. It is
intended that this Securityholding requirement will apply throughout the tenure of directorship. The
effective date of the policy is 1 January 2017.

REMUNERATION QUANTUM

5. Howis Sparklnfrastructure’s. . Performance throughout 2016 was very positive with a number of good achievements Section 2. Page 24
2016 performance reflected in against performance measures, most notably an increase in distributions for 2016 {up 21% to Fe
this year's Executive 14.5¢ps), increased distribution guidance of approximately 5% p.a. in 2017 and 2018; and Section 4, Page 28
remuneration outcomes? the successful transition to private ownership of TransGrid and the commencement of its

transformation exercise.

. The Board approved a suite of performance measures for Spark Infrastructure's incentive
plans in 2016, which ensures all of our strategic drivers are linked to executive reward and
that there is not undue focus on any one particular measure.
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opportunity determined and
what changes were made to
Executive remuneration
quantum in 20167

Both Fixed Remuneration and Total Remuneration policy are around the median of Spark
Infrastructure’s peer group, which include ASX-listed entities of a similar size and operational scope.

The following remuneration movements were determined in 2015 in respect of 2016:

. Fixed Remuneration: increased by 2% for the MD, and 12% for the CFO.

. LTI quantum: as disclosed in our 2016 Notice of Annual General Meefing, the MD's LTI
quantum increased (as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration) (50% to 65%). The CFO's LTI
quantum also increased from 35% to 50% (as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration).

Section 4, Page 29
Section 5.1, Page 30

7. Will Executive remuneration
increase in 20177

There will be no increases to Executive total remuneration in 2017. The Board determined this was
appropriate giving consideration to feedback from Securityholders and in response to market
conditions. It is not a reflection on the performance of Executives during 2016, The Board has
recognised the performance of Executives as indicated by the STl outcomes set out below. The
Board wilf continue its process of annual benchmarking of total remuneration.

Section 4, Page 29

8. Did the quantum of NED fees
increase in 20167

In 2015, the Board determined to increase 2016 NED fees {with effect from 1 January 2016) by
approximately 4% to maintain alignment with market standards.

Section 9.2, Page 40

9. Will NED fees increase in
20172

There will be no increases to NED fees in 2017. The Board determined this was appropriate giving
consideration to feedback from Securityholders and in response to market conditions. The Board will
continue its process of annual benchmarking of NED fees.

Section 9.2, Page 40

10. Do NEDs receive fees for their
appointment on the Boards of
SA Power Networks, Victoria
Power Networks and
TransGrid?

| SHORT TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (‘STP)

NEDs who are currently independently appointed as directors of the Boards of investment portfolio
companies {SA Power Networks, Victoria Power Networks and TransGrid) are entitied to receive
fees separate to those paid for their role as NEDs of Spark Infrastructure. Directors fees for
investment portfolio companies are determined by the boards of those companies and are paid for
by those companies as follows:

. SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks: fees are paid by the respective asset
businesses to NEDs. Director fees for the Spark Infrastructure MD and CFO are in respect of
their work on the asset company boards and are paid to Spark Infrastructure (not to the MD
and CFO).

. TransGrid: all TransGrid securityholders (including Spark Infrastructure) receive an
allowance to compensate for services provided fo TransGrid, including the appointment of
directors to the board of TransGrid. Spark Infrastructure uses its allowance to cover fees paid
fo NEDs who are TransGrid board members, with any residual retained by Spark
Infrastructure.

Section 9.3, Page 41

11. What are the performance
measures for the STI plan?
How do they link with business
strategy?

STi plan performance measures include both financial and non-financial KPls. The measures reflect

the Board's view of KPIs which can be influenced by Executives in actively managing Spark

Infrastructure's investments.

The financial KPIs (60% of fotal ST! opportunity for MD) for 2016 were:

. Total distribution financial measures from Spark Infrastructure’s investments (including
TransGrid) (25%) :

. Total look-through operating cash flow (OCF) / EBITDA financial measures (including
TransGrid (20%)

. Total TransGrid other financial measures (capex and credit rating) (10%)
. Total Spark Infrastructure controfiable costs (5%)
The Non-Financial KPIs (40% of total STI opportunity for MD) for 2016 fall into the following

categories with proportions allocated according to relative levels of operational criticality and
strategic importance:

. Strategic

. Stakeholder management

. Operations

. Optimising regulatory outcomes
. People development

. Special projects

Section 2.1, Page 24
Section 5.3.1, Page 32

12. Is there a minimum financial
performance requirement
before any STi is paid?

In order for the financial component of the ST! to be awarded, Spark Infrastructure must achieve its
Distribution Guidance for the relevant year. In 2016, the stated Distribution Guidance of 14.5 cents
per security (“cps”) was achieved. Accordingly, the financial component of the ST was available for
payment subject to the performance hurdles.

The distribution gateway does not apply to the Non-Financial KPI portion of the STI.

Section 5.3.1, Page 31
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13,

What is the maximum ST!
opportunity each Executive can
eam under the STi plan? How
is this determined?

Executive maximum STI opportunities are expressed as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration as
follows:

. MD: 100%
. CFO: 80%
. General Counsel / Company Secretary: 70%

Maximum STI opportunities are determined by the Board with consideration given to market
remuneration opportunities.
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Section 5.2, Page 31

the STl in 2017?

What are the performance

measures for determining LTI

vesting? How do they link with
business strategy?

Unregulated revenue will be introduced as a financial KP! to the STI, with a corresponding
adjustment and weighting of the existing financial KPIs for the MD as follows.

o Total distribution financial measures from Spark Infrastructure’s investments (25%)
o Total look-through operating cash flow (OCF) / EBITDA financial measures (20%)
o Unregulated revenue targets (10%)

o Total Spark Infrastructure controllable costs {(6%)

For 2017 the aggregated measures relevant to TransGrid wilt have 20% weighting.

LONG TERM INCENTIVE PLAN ¢y
= .

Grants made in 2016 are subject to a risk adjusted TSR performance measure, assessed against
the constituent companies in the S&P/ASX 200 index.

The Board believes a risk adjusted TSR is appropriate to Spark Infrastructure in aligning Executives
to Securityholders' interests because it accounts for the relative riskiness of investments unlike a
standard relative TSR measure.

The Board understands that Spark Infrastructure investors generally expect stable returns and
relatively low-risk. By adjusting the TSR performance of Spark Infrastructure and the comparator
group companies for risk outside of the companies’ control, then the variation in relative company
returns based on risk-adjusted TSR should be more reflective of management performance.

14, Is a portion of STi deferred into )
Spar[})< Infrastructure equity? Half of any STl awarded is deferred into Rights, of which: Section 5.3.1, Page 33
o 50% vests 12 months after the end of the ST performance period; and
e 50% vests 24 months after the end of the STI performance period.
Deferral into equity strengthens the alignment of Executives to the delivery of value to our
Securityholders.
15. What changes will be made to

Section 4, Page 29

Section 5.3.3, Page 33

. What comparator group(s) are

the performance measures
assessed against? How were
they chosen?

The Board views the constituents of the S&P/ASX 200 index, adjusted for risk, to be the most
appropriate comparator group.

Refer to our website for further detail: www.sparkinfrastructure.com/about/govemnance.

Section 5.3.3, Page 34

18.

Is LTi grant quantum based on
“face value” methodology?

Spark Infrastructure uses a face value methodology for allocating Rights to each Executive. The
face value is the volume weighted average price (“YWAP"} of stapled securities traded in the 30
trading days up to and including 31 December. The VWAP applicable for the allocation of the 2017
Rights to Executives is $2.26.

Section 5.3.3, Page 34

18.

What changes will be made o
the LTl in 20177

The LTI will continue to operate as a four year plan with payments made in the form of equity
{Rights) at the end of four years.

Two cash flow performance measures will be introduced: Standalone Operating Cash fiow before
tax (“Standalone OCF") and Look-through Operating Cash flow (“Look-through OCF"), which can
both be directly influenced by Executives through actively managing our investments. The Board
believes the inclusion of internal measures (i.e. cash flow measures) and an extemal measure (i.e.
risk adjusted TSR} on the LTI provides the right focus for Executives on delivering long-term
Securityholder vaiue.

Consequently, 2017 LTI awards will be separated into three tranches:

¢ Tranche 1 (50% of LTI award): Spark Infrastructure’s risk adjusted TSR performance will be
assessed over a four-year period.

s Tranche 2 (25% of LTI award): Standalone OCF will be measured over a three-year period
{the test period), plus require a further one-year service period in order to vest at the end of
four years (i.e. four-year vesting period).

o Tranche 3 (25% of LTI award): Look-through OCF will be measured over a three-year period
(the test period), plus require a further one year setvice petiod in order to vest at the end of
four yeats {i.e. a four-year vesting period).

Section 5.3.3, Page 34
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20. What decision has been made
around the LT Transition
Payment?

Executives have the opportunity to receive a one-off LTI Transition Payment. The Transition Section 2.2, Page 25
Payment was to compensate for the gap in LT! vesting (created by the shift from a three to four-year
LTI performance period in 2014) together with other changes (benefits foregone) to Executive
confracts, as previously disclosed. The Transition Payment was not a guaranteed award and
payment is subject to independent assessment using the risk adjusted TSR methodology over the
pericd 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

An independent assessment of the LTI Transition Payment has been conducted using the risk
adjusted TSR methodology with the Board having determined this as an appropriate relative
performance measure.

The results of the independent assessment as at 31 December 2016, using the risk adjusted TSR
methodology, showed Spark Infrastructure at the 83« percentile against the S&P/ASX200 being the
relevant peer group. The LTI vesting schedule provides for 100% vesting at or above the 76%
percentile.

Applying the LTI vesting schedule, this would indicate vesting in full and therefore 100%
achievement of the LTI Transition Payment.

The Transition Payment vested on 31 December 2016.

 DEFINED TERMS NOT OTHERWISE DEFINED IN THIS REPORT

MD The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Spark Infrastructure

CFO The Chief Financial Officer of Spark Infrastructure

Key Management Personnel Those people who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the major activities of Spark Infrastructure,
("KMP") divectly or indirectly, including any Director (whether Non-Executive or otherwise) of Spark Infrastructure and any Executive
Executives The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the General Counsel / Company Secretary
Fixed Remuneration Fixed Remuneration is the fixed annual remuneration component of Total Remuneration. Fixed Remuneration includes cash,

superannuation, car leases and parking aflowances but excludes Non-Monetary items

Non-Monetary ltems This includes life and income protection insurances and any other incidental benefits
KPIs Key performance indicators set by the Board for the Executives
Securities The securities traded on the ASX under the ticker “SKI” (comprising one unit in Spark Infrastructure Trust stapled to one loan note

issued by Spark Infrastructure RE Limited (ACN 114 940 984) in its capacity as responsible entity for Spark Infrastructure Trust)

Total Remuneration Total Remuneration comprises Fixed Remuneration plus Non-Monetary items plus STi plus LTI

TSR TSR or Total Securityholder Retumn is the total retumn from a security to an investor. It combines security price appreciation or
diminution plus distributions reinvested to show the total retum to an investor

AGM The Annual General Meeting of Spark Infrastructure
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2. 2016 Overview
2016 was another year of consistent and strong performance for Spark Infrastructure with many notable achievements such as:

¢ Increase in distributions for 2016 (up 21% to 14.5cps) and distribution guidance of approximately 5% p.a. in both 2017 and 2018
»  Standalone operating cashflow up 47.4% to $305,600,000()

e Successful transition to private ownership of TransGrid with implementation of appropriate supporting governance frameworks
*  Appointment of new TransGrid GEO and Independent Chair

¢ Achievement of Baa2 credit rating from Moody's for TransGrid

e  Creation of a solid and growing pipeline of infrastructure connection opportunities with TransGrid

e  TransGrid regulatory submission development

e Good progress on transformation of TransGrid into a commercially customer focussed innovative business

*  Victoria Power Network's World CLASS efficiency program achieving $167,000,000 p.a. in savings

e  Continued active management of our investment portfolio

e  Continued constructive engagement with our investment partners

e Active and credible thought leadership within the industry

e  Enhanced program of engagement with investors and other stakeholders

¢ Orderly divestment of the economic interest in DUET Group during the year

e Repayment of all corporate debt facilities by 30 June 2016

Executive remuneration outcomes reflect the performance of Spark Infrastructure and Executives' active management of Spark
Infrastructure’s investments in 2016. Further detail is outlined below.

{) Includes repayment of shareholder loans.
21 8Tl awards reflect Spark Infrastructure performance
Spark Infrastructure’s financial performance directly influences the STl received by Executives in two ways:

1. In order for the financial component of the STI to be awarded, Spark Infrastructure must achieve its Distribution Guidance for 2016 of
14.5 cps. The Board has declared a Distribution of 14.5 cps for 2016. Accordingly, the Distribution Guidance was achieved; and

2. Spark Infrastructure’s ST! has four key financial performance measures directly cascading from Spark Infrastructure’s business strategy:
total distribution financial measures, fotal look-through OCF/EBITDA financial measures, total TransGrid other financial measures, and
total Spark Infrastructure controllable costs.

The table below outlines Spark Infrastructure’s performance against each financial KPI

Total distribution financial measures from investments 82%
Total look-through OCF/EBITDA financial measures 58%
Total TransGrid other financial measures 85%
Total Spark Infrastructure controllable costs 77%
TOTAL FINANCIAL KPI's 74%

The following table shows the actual STI outcomes for each Executive for 2016, The actual STI outcome for Executives is based on a
combination of the financial performance achieved (74% for 2016) and assessment of achievement against personal KPls, producing a
blended percentage outcome. For further detail regarding the STI, refer to section 5.3.1.

Rick Francis 100% 74.4% 25.6% 607,848
Greg Botham(t 80% 76.4% 23.6% 330,048
Alexandra Finley 70% 71.6% 28.4% 205,492

(1)  The CFO resigned in February 2017. Accordingly, half of the CFO's Actual ST for 2016 which has been deferred into Rights will lapse.
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2.2 LTl Transition Payment Vesting

As a result of the Board's decision in 2014 to change the LTI performance period from three years to four years, no LTI awards were due to
vest in 2016.

As disclosed in our 2014 and 2015 Remuneration Reports, to compensate for this gap in vesting (created by the shift from a three to four-year
LTI performance period) and for other changes (benefits foregone) to Executive contracts, Executives were granted the opportunity to receive
a one-off LTI Transition Payment with effect from 1 January 2014.

The LTI Transition Payment was not a guaranteed award and payment has been subject to assessment by the Board using a risk adjusted
TSR performance hurdle over the period 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. This approach is consistent with the current LTI plan,
applying the same performance measure but assessed across a three-year period.

The results of the independent assessment using the risk adjusted TSR methodology showed Spark Infrastructure in the 83rd percentile
against the constituent companies in the S&P/ASX200 (as at 1 January 2014) as the relevant peer group. The LTI vesting schedule provides
for 100% vesting at or above the 75th percentile. Applying the LTI vesting schedule, this indicated vesting in full and therefore 100%
achievement of the LTI Transition Payment. LTI Transition Payments will be paid in March 2017. The LTI Transition Payment is cash settled.

2.3 The MDs Remuneration Package

Details of the MD’s 2016 remuneration package are set out in the table below.

Rick Francis 817,000 100% 817,000 65% 531,050 2,165,050

There is no change to the MD's remuneration package for 2017.
2.4 Actual remuneration received

Based on the outcomes described in section 2.1 and 2.2 above, the following table shows details of the actual remuneration received by
Executives in 2016 and 2015. (The amounts in the table differ from the Executive statutory remuneration which is set out in section 6.)

EXECUTIVES

Rick Francis

2016 792,000 479,092 23,160 25,000 173,253 1,492,505
2015 775,708 278,250 18,442 25,000 461,449 1,558,850
Greg Botham

2016 520,538 257,662 6,500 19,462 80,210 884,372
2015 463,663 145,440 5,730 19,046 170,352 804,231
Alexandra Finley

2016 390,538 142,506 10,647 19,462 49,867 613,020
2015 350,483 77,556 8,929 19,046 163,071 619,085

) ST1 received in 2016 represents both amounts eamed in relation to the individual's performance from 2015 and amounts defetred into “notional” securities in 2014 that
vested on 31 December 2015. STl received in 2015 represents amounts eamed in relation to the individual's performance from 2014

@ LTI received in 2016 relates to the 2013 LT allocation which vested on 31 December 2015. LTI received in 2015 relates to the 2012 LTI allocation which vested on 31
December 2014,
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Commencing in 2017, the MD will be required to hold the equivalent of 100% of Fixed Remuneration in Securities, and wilt be required to do
s0 within a three-year period. For other KMP, the requirement will be the equivalent of 50% of Fixed Remuneration within a three-year period.

The below table sets out the beneficial interests in securities held by Executives as at 31 December 2016:

343,241

Rick Francis 23,942 92410 226,889
Greg Botham®@ - 50,299 123,3188 173,617
Alexandra Finley - 28,230 73,693 101,923

) Rights shown at 31 December 2016 include additional Rights in respect of distribution equivalents applicable to the deferral years.

@ Unvested Rights at 31 December 2016 are scheduled to vest in two further tranches on 31 December 2017 and 2018 respectively, in accordance
with the terms of the Deferred ST Plan (subject only to continuity of employment).

® The CFO resigned in February 2017. Accordingly, the CFO's unvested rights at 31 December 2016 will lapse.

2.6 Spark Infrastructure financial performance

The table below shows the reported financial performance of Spark Infrastructure over the last five years.

(S$t%tgéc)>ry Profit after tax affributable to Securityholders 81,083 88,024 128,133 128,435 173,851
?;z%xéc))ry Profit before Loan Note Interest and tax expense 225,816 252,820 272,092 294,482 277,050
Closing Security price at year end (3) 2.38 1.92 213 1.62 1.67¢0
Distribution per Security (cents) 14.50 12.00 11.50 11.00 10.50
Operating costs {$'000) 13,545 14,196 11,315 8,195 10,855
Look-through Operating Cash flow (cps) 224 289 251 223 20.6
Net Debt/Regulatory Asset Base ("RAB") (%) 747 730 77.2 785 797

(0 The opening security price at the start of 2012 was $1.38

Spark Infrastructure 5 Year Total Shareholder Returns
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3. Key Management Personnel

This Report covers Spark Infrastructure’s KMP, comprised of Executives and Independent NEDs.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the KMP were:

Spark Infrastructure
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EXECUTIVES
Mr Rick Francis Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (“MD”) Full Year
Mr Greg Botham Chief Financial Officer (*CFO") Full Year
Ms Alexandra Finley General Counsel / Company Secretary Full Year
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS ‘ ~
Independent Non-Executive Director and Chair from 20 May 2016, Member of Full Year
Dr Douglas McTaggart Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Mr Brian Scullin ggfér and Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committee until 20 May Part Year
Mr Andrew Fay Member of Audit, Risk and Compliance Commitiee Full Year
Chair of Audit and Risk Management Committee, Member of Remuneration and Full Year
Ms Anne McDonald Nomination Committee
- . . . - . Full Year
Ms Christine McLoughlin Chair of Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Ms Karen Penrose Member of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Full Year
Full Year

Dr Keith Turner

Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committee
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4,  Executive remuneration link to business strategy

At Spark Infrastructure, our Executive remuneration is linked to the drivers of our business strategy, with the overarching aim of maximising

Securityholder value. Our strategic drivers are reflected in STI and LTI performance measures, so that Spark Infrastructure’s actual
performance directly affects what Executives earn.

4 - Remuneration philosophy and link to business strategy

STRATEQIC ST PERFORMANCE LTI PERFORMANCE SPARK INERASTRUCTURE'S WHAT EXECUTIVES
DRIVERS OBJECTIVES OBJECTIVES PERFORMANCE ARE PAID
IN FY2016
Deliver sustainable Total distribution 50% of Award - Across the period 2014 - KMP 2016 STI
growth In financial measures Relative TSR 2016 Spark Infrastruciure’s outcome
distributions based from investments Measures the relative TSR was 83% TH78% ol ST
on profitable pedormance of relative to companies in the opportunity achieved
growthin ssset Sparkinfrastructure S&PIASY 200 index $0% payablein cash
base ? % Becurities-over fime, and 50% deferred
This forms the basis relative 1o companies into Performance
of the Board's in the S&P/ASX 200 Rights
approach lo Index over 4 years
consideration for all Plus KMP 2016 LT}
matters 25% of Award oulcoma
We will continve lo measured against No LT1 vesting in
assess opportunities Standalone Key 2%2‘ of
for diversification Operaling Cash Flow 1 Transtion
over ime in @ over a‘;:?ee.yea( ¥ = exceeded target Payrent vested on
disciplinod manner period (the test & =ontarget 31 Deember 2018
period) and vests X = below targel
after a further one-
year petiod at the -
Active management + Financial KPis: end of four years gm‘am work
of asset portfollo Total fook-through 25% of Award toria Paw }‘e s
Aclively manage a OCF/EBITDA measured against L n i
portlolio of significant financial measutes Look-through S°A°g' N X
interosts lo peovide » Non Financial Operating Cash Flow Dist ower em"/ofka
$cope Lo influence KPis: over a three-year L ti?m v
outcomes and drive « Ensure robus! period (the test T°° ;Gﬁd
performance in governance al period) and vests D":“ K
underlying assets both fund level after a furlher one- tributions e
and assel level year period al the EBITOA ¢/
+ Apply industry end of four years
and regulatory
| expertise to
& assel level ?
investment
strategy and Non Financial
operations 6 key measures
individual assessment for
each Execufive
Refer 531
TransGrid Total TransGrid TransGrid
performance other financisl Capex v/
Transformation of measures Credit Rating @
TransGrid inlo a
focusad, privale
segtorbusiness
Embrace changing Total Spark Spark Infrastructure
business Infrastructure controfable costs
environment E controliablecosts
Technologicsl
advancamantswil
ﬁxym‘?‘b‘cﬁ% "g Unregulsted
Power Networks and evanue thrgets
Victoria Power {trom 2047)
Networks businesses
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The Board is committed to ensuring the Executive remuneration approach is informed by market practice, takes Securityholder views into
account, is linked to our business strategy, and operates fo attract and retain key talent. Over the past three years, the Board made a number
of changes to the Executive remuneration framework in support of these objectives. The changes for 2017 mark the culmination of this period
of evolution of the Executive remuneration framework and importantly take into consideration the concerns of Securityholders reflected in the
“strike” received against the 2015 Remuneration Report. These changes are summarised in the table below.

LT} performance period extended from three to four years

1 January 2014
Risk adjusted TSR introduced as LT} performance measure with change in vesting scale (percentage of award
vesting reduced from 50% to 30% at 51t TSR percentile ranking)
STl opportunity increased for the MD from 60% to 100% of Fixed Remuneration
Deferral of 50% of STI award into ‘notional securities’ which vest in two equal franches over 12 and 24 months
Comprehensive review of Executive total remuneration conducted by independent remuneration experts
Variation to MD's employment contract: certain guaranteed bonuses on termination removed and termination
payment limited fo 12 months' Fixed Remuneration

14 2015 Introduced a minimum financial performance requirement fo the STI whereby the financial component of the STI

anuary would only be awarded if Spark Infrastructure achieved its stated distribution guidance of a minimum cps target
Introduced Rights as the award vehicle for both the LT and deferred STI
—— . : > o

1 January 2016 LTI opportunity increased as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration (from 50% to 656% for MD)
Increased Fixed Remuneration by only 2% for the MD
Reweighted ST measures to 60% financial, 40% non-financial KPIs {for MD and CFO)
Rebalanced remuneration mix for the CFO (STI reduced from 90% to 80% of Fixed Remuneration, LTI increased
from 35% to 50% of Fixed Remuneration)

14 2017 Introduced an Executive Share Ownership Policy whereby the MD will be required to hold the equivalent of 100% of

anuary Fixed Remuneration in securities, and will be required to do so within a three-year period. For other KMP, the

requirement will be the equivalent of 50% of Fixed Remuneration in a three-year period
Unregulated revenue will be introduced as a financial KP! to the STI, with a corresponding adjustment in the
weighting of the existing financial KPls
Standalone OCF and Look-through OCF will be introduced as LT| performance measures (weighted at 25% each), in
addition to the current risk adjusted TSR measure (weighted at 50%)
There will be no increases to Executive total remuneration opportunity in 2017
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5.  Executive remuneration policy and overview of incentive plans

This section outlines Spark Infrastructure’s executive remuneration policy and detail of the STi and LT plans.

5.1 Remuneration policy and mix

Executives’ remuneration and mix of remuneration are appropriate to each Executive's position, responsibilities and performance, in a way
that aligns with our business strategy.

Executives receive Fixed Remuneration and variable ‘at-risk’ remuneration consisting of short and long-term incentive opportunities. Executive
remuneration levels are reviewed annually by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee (“RemCo") with reference to the market and
Spark Infrastructure’s business.

The diagram below provides a summary of the structure of Executive remuneration in 2016,

Eu;ﬁmﬁﬁ'Rémﬁnért;ﬁqn'rfa

Fixed Remuneration ﬁ Short term incentive ('STI) Long term incentive CLTI")
Fixed Remuneration is the base level reward ¢+ Determined based on largels set by the » Delivered in Performance Rights
for an Execulive to perform thelr day-to-day Board, including a balance of financial and N ur ; ariniti
role and responsibilities, and comprises cash, personal objeclives, measured overa 12- Cul """.‘,'Yea’ opportunities between 0%
and 65% of Fixed Remuneration
superannuation and car jeases (bul excludes month period Subject to.a risk adju ied TSR
non-mongtary items). An Executiva’s Fixed . . . ¢ Subjectloa sk adjus
Reminaaon et S o] e ey 0% " patamance gl measred overa
) ] . ye ormance
+  matket value of their role; . ot 1
their skl A i Delivered 50% in cash, 50% in Rights + Entitled to distribution equivalent payment
*  theirski S'F’ﬁ"“"c"- and industry +  Deferred component; 50% of the Rights are if any Performance Rights vest
K -8 delerred for 12 months and the remaining  gatar 1o gection 5:3.3 for further detal
*  quanlym appropiiate lo altract, reward, 50% for 24 months, subject to continued h
‘motive and relain the individual, employment
»  Enlitted to distribution equivalent payment
on deferred component

Refer to section 5.3.1 for further detail

__ TotalRemunenatio

lile) level for a comparalor group of AS

Spark Infrastructure’s remuneration policy has a strong performance focus, with a large proportion of Executives’ remuneration contingent on
maximising Securityholder value. The charts below set out the remuneration structure and maximum remuneration mix for the MD and other
Executives in 2016 and 2017: Refer to section 5.3 for detalil on the structure of the STl and LTI,

MD

Fixed remuneration
38%

Fixed remuneration
43%

General Counsel / Company Secretary

Fixed remuneration

50%
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5.2 Potential maximum at-risk remuneration for Executives in 2016

Presented below are the Executive maximum STI and LTI opportunities for 2016 expressed as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration. The
opportunities are determined with reference to market norms and the Executive’s relative influence on Spark Infrastructure’s performance.
The minimum STI and LTI opportunities are nil.

' MAXIMUM STI OPPORTUNITY % OF MAXIMUM LTI OPPORTUNITY % OF

POSIT!ON FIVXED’ REMUN’ERATION FIXED REMUNERATION
Managing Director 100% 65%
Chief Financial Officer 80% 50%
General Counsel and Company Secretary 70% 30%

Incentive plan structure in detail

KEYCHANGESIN20’16‘ ‘

‘As announced in our 2015 Remuneratron Report

~ - the welghtlng of fi nancral KPIs rncreased inthe MD's STI trom 50% of the total opportumty to 60% to recogmse rmportance of ahgmng STt

, outcomes fo Spark lnfrastructure f nanmal performance For 2016 awards a portron (20%) of the i nanmal component of the STI is

. : [ ecrf cally related to the performance ofTranand and

. . deferred STl for 2016 was dellvered as Rrghts (rather than cash a3 was our pnor approach) whrch rsrntended to mcrease equrty holdmgs

ot Executrves and create stronger alrgnment between rnterests ot Executlves wrth Sec‘ "tyhold‘ r
their deferred STI for 2015 as Rrghts -

' Inaddrtron, Executrves elected to take ‘

5.3.1 2016 short-term incentives

The following table sets out the key features of Spark Infrastructure’s ST arrangements.

What is the purpose of
the STI?

To set performance measures that are challenging, provide a link between remuneration and performance and focus on
creating sustainable retums for Securityholders.

To focus Executives on the achievement of results in areas that are expected to impact the performance of Spark
Infrastructure in the short term together with annual sustained performance.

o Toassistin the attraction, reward and retention of high quality employees.
s To constrain the potential for unacceptable risk taking.

To ensure that a significant portion of remuneration is “at risk” with a mix of financial and non-financial performance
measures.

Through deferral, to strengthen the link between Executive remuneration and long-term Securityholder returns.

What are Executives’ STI
opportunities?

The maximum STi opportunity is expressed as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration and is determined with reference to
market norms, and each Executive's relative influence on Spark Infrastructure’s performance. See section 5.2 for details.

Is there a gateway level

Yes, in order for the financial component of the ST fo be awarded, Spark Infrastructure must achieve its Distribution

of performance before Guidance. In June 2016 Spark Infrastructure announced Distribution Guidance of 14.5 cps for 2016. The Board has
any STl may be declared a 2016 Distribution of 14.5 ¢ps. Accordingly, the financial component of the STI was available for payment
awarded? subject to the performance hurdles.

The distribution gateway does not apply to the Non-Financial KPI portion of the STI.
What are the If the ‘gateway’ is achieved an Executive’s ST1 award is assessed based on financial KPls and non-financial KPlIs over a

performance measures
for STl awards?

12 month performance period. Non-Financial KPIs may be weighted differently among employees depending on their
relative influence in the area. The actual percentage targets for non-financial KPIs are not disclosed, as some may be
commercially sensitive. However, proportions for each category are allocated according to relative levels of operational
criticality and strategic importance.
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Spark Infrastructure Financial KPIs and Non-Financial KPls are as follows:
Financial KPls

Total distribution financial measures - Spark Infrastructure objective is to deliver steadily growing distributions to
Securityholders over time, based on distributions received from its investments.

Total look-through OCF/EBITDA financial measures - Look-through cash flows demonstrates growth and operational
performance of the underlying businesses which produces distributions growth,

Total TransGrid other financial measures - The creation of long-term value accretion from the recent 2015 investment in
TransGrid is a key priority.

Total Spark Infrastructure controlfable costs - Disciplined management of Spark Infrastructure’s costs is an area of
continual focus to deliver value for Securityholders.

How this is measured - A "target” and "stretch” goal is set at the start of the financial year with the outcome calculated
based on the following scale. Outcomes are reviewed by the RemCo and recommended to the Board for approval.

,; . - - % OF STI THAT VESTS BASED ON SPARK
PERFORMANCE LEVEL ; , INFRASTUCTURE’FINANCIAL‘K’P‘IS -
Below threshold 0%
Target 70%
Exceed stretch target 100%

Non-financial KPls

Strategic - Spark Infrastructure’s vision is fo be a leading Australian listed utility infrastructure investment fund, to provide
long-term atiractive stable retums and capital growth in line with its risk profile and market expectations, and to establish a
diversified porifolio of quality regulated utility infrastructure assets over time.

Stakeholder management - interaction of management with investment partners, industry participants, market participants
and the communities in which its underlying businesses operate is critical to realising near term value creation and
ensuring the long-term sustainability of the investment portfolio.

Optimising regulatory outcomes - Is critical to the ongoing financial performance of the businesses which comprise Spark
Infrastructure’s investment portfolio.

Operations - operational efficiency, reliability and safety of the underlying businesses in the investment portfolio coupled
with identifying and prosecuting unregulated business opportunities is a key tenet of success. Spark Infrastructure
exercises robust stewardship of the business through its active management approach and participation on the boards in
its investment portfolio.

People development - people development is fundamental in maintaining sustainable long-term operations. Spark
Infrastructure has a small team of specialist employees and the creation of value for the fisted entity relies on the skills,
expertise and experience of its people.

Special projects — from time fo time Spark Infrastructure will undertake special projects such as the assessment of a
potential acquisition opportunity with an assessment made on the diligence and effectiveness of how the project is
executed and not on the outcome.

How this is measured - Non-Financial KPIs for Executives (other than the MD) are set and assessed by the MD, and are
reviewed by the RemCo.

The MD's performance is assessed and approved by the Board. The Board's assessment and review is conducted on
both a quantitative and qualitative level.

The weighting of these Spark Infrastructure financial KPIs and non-financial KPls for each Executive in 2016 were as
follows:

~ INDIVIDUAL WEIGHTING | 2016 ACHIEVEMENT

POSIION |  FINANCIALKPIs | NONFINANCIALKPs |  NON-FINANCIAL KPls

Managing Director 60% 40% ‘ 75%
Shief Fnancll 60% 40% 80%
General Counsel /

Company 40% 60% 70%
Secretary

For a summary of overall 2016 ST| outcomes, refer to section 2.1.
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Over what period are Performance is measured over Spark Infrastructure’s financial year,
awards measured, and .
how are they delivered? ~ For Executives:

e 50% of any STl award is paid in cash in February following the year of assessment;

50% is deferred evenly over the following two years, with half of the deferred portion vesting 12 months later, and the
remainder vesting 24 months later (deferral periods).

The deferred STi component is delivered in the form of Rights at the end of the one-year performance period. At the end
of the vesting period (i.e., an additional one or two years continuous service period following the performance period),
rights are automatically exercised and one stapled security is received for every Right that vests.

A dividend equivalent payment is also made upon vesting, and will be equal to the distributions the Executive would have
been entitled to receive had they held the physical securities during the deferral period.

How is the deferred STI Spark Infrastructure uses a face value methodology for allocating Rights to each Executive, being the VWAP of stapled
valued? securities fraded in the 30 trading days up to and including 31 December. The relevant VWAP for determination of the
2017 Grant of Rights is $2.26.

5.3.2 Historic STl deferral arrangements

For 2014, deferred STI awards are delivered under a cash-based “phantom” security plan. Executives are granted Notional Reference
Securities that match the value of Spark Infrastructure’s security price and have an initial value equivalent to the deferred STI outcome at the
award date. They are not ‘actual’ securities and do not carry voting rights.

For deferred STl in 2014, a dividend equivalent payment is also made upon vesting, and will be equal to the distributions the Executive would
have been entitled to receive had they held the securities during the deferral period.

For 2015, deferred STI awards were to be delivered under a cash-based “phantom” security plan. However in February 2016, Executives
elected to take their deferred STI for 2015 as Rights in line with the arrangements outlined above.

For further detail regarding STI deferral awards ‘on-foot’ during 2016 (including the number of instruments granted), refer to section 10.1.

5.3.3 2016 long-term incentives

KEY CHANGES IN 2016

, . Whlle there were no changes tothe. structure of the LTI |n 2016 the welghtmg on LTl mcreased for the MD and CFO from 20% fo 24%, and 15% to
22% of total remuneratlon respectlvely - .

The following table sets out the key features of Spark Infrastructure’s LT arrangements.

To align Executive reward with the long-term interests of Spark Infrastructure and its Securityholders, ensuring

Whatis the purpose of the creation of sustainable Securityholder returns.

LTI?
»  To set performance hurdles that measure performance in terms of risk management as well as retums.

« Toensure that a significant portion of remuneration is “at risk".

What are the Executives’ LT The maximum LT} opportunity is expressed as a percentage of Fixed Remuneration. See section 5.2 for details.

opportunities?

What performance Grants made in 2016 were subject to a risk adjusted TSR performance measure only, and will be assessed against
conditions apply to LTi the constituent companies in the S&P/ASX 200 index at the grant date (i.e. 1 January 2016).

awards?

Why have we chosen Relative TSR allows us fo measure whether we have achieved our key long-term strategic goals of delivering
relative TSR? sustainable growth in distributions and creating Securityholder value.

The relative (rather than absolute) measurement of TSR provides Spark Infrastructure with a measure of how we
are performing in comparison to the market. Where an absolute security price target is used, Executives could be
rewarded by a rising market even if Spark Infrastructure performs relatively poorly.

Constituent companies of the S&P / ASX 200 form the most appropriate comparator group as there are too few
companies with equivalent risk and return expectations to Spark Infrastructure.
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Why do we adjust for risk in
calculating TSR?

Risk adjusted TSR is the retum on a security in excess of what would be expected taking into consideration the
refative level of risk in each peer company's security. The relationship between risk and return is well understood;
that is, if risk is high, then there Is an expectation of higher retums, and vice versa.

Traditional TSR does not to take into account the riskiness of an investment in a particular company. For example,
two companies could have the same shareholder return, but one may be a much riskier investment than the other.
While TSR is a common method of assessing long-term performance, in our view, execufives who deliver the same
level of retum at a lower risk should be rewarded accordingly.

We understand investors in Spark Infrastructure generally seek stable returns and lower than average risk. To
reflect this, we identified two key factors which influence retums: systemic risk (e.g. economic and political) and non-
systemic risk (e.g. management skills and judgement). By adjusting for systemic risk in our calculation of TSR, the
variability in adjusted returns is more strongly related to management performance.

Ranking companies by their risk-adjusted retum, over a specific period, provides a comparison that more closely
reflects how investment decisions are actually made. That is, when making an investment decision, an investor will
have a requirement for a company return that is informed by the perceived risk associated with the company.

How is risk adjusted TSR
calculated?

The excess return of Spark Infrastructure (above what would be expected taking into consideration the relative level
of risk in each peer company’s security) is compared to the excess returns of S&P/ASX 200 index companies over
the four-year performance period, to determine ifs percentile ranking.

The Board views the constituents of the S&P/ASX 200 index, adjusted for risk, to be the most appropriate
comparator group as this group should account for the investment preferences of our investors.

How is risk adjusted TSR
measured?

The degree to which LTI opportunity vests is determined by reference to the following scale:

% OF LTIAWARD THATVESTS

TSR PERCENTILE RANKING
Below the 51t percentile 0%
At the 51¢ percentile 30%

Between the 51¢t percentile and the 75t percentile Pro-rata vesting between 30% and100%

At or above the 75% percentile 100%

Testing of the award will occur shortly after the end of the performance period. If any LTI awards do not vest on
testing, they will immediately lapse.

The risk adjusted TSR calculation is undertaken independently of management and is externally reviewed on an
annual basis. The Board has disclosed the methodology used to calculate the risk adjusted TSR applicable to assess
the LT) on Spark Infrastructure’s website at www.sparkinfrastructure.com/aboutigovernance.

Over what period is
performance assessed?

Risk adjusted TSR is assessed over four years (vesting period). For the additional two cash flow measures to be
introduced for the LT} from the 2017 grant, a three-year testing period will apply with vesting at the end of four years,

Is LTt grant quantum based
on “face value” methodology?

Spark Infrastructure uses a face value methodology for aliocating Rights to each Executive, being the VWAP of
stapled securities traded in the 30 trading days up to and including 31 December. The VWAP for assessment of the
2017 Grant of LTI Awards is $2.26.

s there any retesting of
awards?

There is no retesting of LTI awards.

How are awards delivered?

LT awards are delivered in the form of Rights. Executives receive one stapled security for every Right that vests,
together with a distribution equivalent payment for each security allocated on vesting. This distribution equivalent
payment will be equal to the distributions the Executive would have been entifled to receive had they held the
securities during the vesting period.

What changes will be made fo
the LT1in 20177

Two cash flow measures will apply to the assessment of performance under the LTI from the 2017 grant in addition
to risk adjusted TSR. Spark Infrastructure will introduce Standalone OCF and Look-through OCF measures to the
awards. The Board believes the inclusion of internal measures (i.e., cash flow measures) and an external measure
{i.e., risk adjusted TSR) on the LTI provides the right focus for Executives on delivering long-term Securityholder
value.
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Standalone OCF and Look-through OCF were selected as the best measures among alternatives considered by the
RemCo, as they:

¢ can be influenced by Executives by actively managing the cost, performance, capital expenditure and
debt strategy of our investments;

s clearly demonstrate the performance of Spark Infrastructure; and

o reflect Spark Infrastructure’s ability to influence the investment companies to ensure distributions are
received and are available to be paid to Spark Infrastructure investors.

The introduction of the new cash flow measures takes into consideration feedback from Securityholders and Is
intended to create the right balance between extemal measures and internal measures within the control of
management. [t is believed this will increase transparency and reduce any potential for artificial growth in distributions
to Securityholders by more clearly linking the operational performance of the investment portfolio to the performance
of Spark Infrastructure. The decision to use both look-through and standalone cash flow measures seeks to
emphasise this balance. Use of a look-through cash flow measure recognises the importance of protecting
Securityholder inferests through the appropriate extraction of cash from the investment portfolio. Use of a standalone
cash flow measure recognises the application of management's particular skills in the management of minority
interests and represents a significant part of the value added by Spark infrastructure.

While the LTI performance period is four years, a three-year testing period for the OCF measures has been
determined as appropriate. This allows smoothing of outcomes over the testing period in order to reduce volatility
between and across regulatory periods.

Details of the assessment and vesting of the additional LTI hurdles will be included in the Notice of Meeting for the
2017 AGM as part of the resolution seeking approval for the Grant of Performance Rights to the MD.

5.4 Historic LTI arrangements

Two LTI arrangements were ‘on-foot’ during 2016:

1.

Further detail regarding this award may be found in the 2014 Remuneration Report, which is available on Spark Infrastructure’s website

For a breakdown of LT] awards ‘on-foot’ during 2016 (including the number of instruments granted), refer to section 10.2,

LTI Transition Payment: vesting of the LT! Transition Payment was subject fo satisfaction of a risk-adjusted TSR hurdle, and
occurred on 31 December 2016. Refer to section 2.2 for further detail.
2014 LTI award: granted as “phantom” equity unlike the 2015 and 2016 awards, which were delivered as Rights. The
performance meastre applied is the same as the 2015 and 2016 awards (i.e., risk adjusted TSR), as is the period over which
it is measured (i.e., four years with vesting to occur on 31 December 2017).
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5.5 STland LTI common features: Clawback, treatment of awards on cessation of employment and hedging

Below are key common features shared between the STl and LTI

Can awards be reduced?

Clawback arrangements remain in place for Executives and the STl and/or LTI may be forfeited if an Executive:

. has personally acted fraudulently or dishonestly;
. has breached his or her material obligations to Spark Infrastructure; or
. receives remuneration as a result of the fraud, dishonesty or breach of obligation of another person.

Spark Infrastructure's clawback policy may be accessed at: www.sparkinfrastructure.com/about/govemance.

What if an Executive ceases
to be employed by Spark
Infrastructure?

The treatment of Rights on termination of employment will vary based on assessment by the Board of the
circumstances of termination.

If an Executive ceases employment with Spark Infrastructure prior to the end of the performance or deferral period by
reason of resignation or termination for cause, all unvested Rights automatically lapse.

if an Executive ceases employment for any other reason (including death, redundancy, genuine retirement), a pro-
rata portion of their unvested Rights will remain ‘on-foot’ subject to the original terms unfil the end of the vesting
period. The pro-rata portion that remains ‘on-foot will be determined based on the portion of the performance or
deferral period elapsed on the date of their cessation, and the remaining portion will lapse on the date of cessation.

Executives who cease employment remain efigible for the cash component of their ST! pro-rated for the part year of
their completed service (unless their employment is terminated for cause) in an amount o be determined by the
Board by reference to their KPIs for that year. Any actual payment of the cash component of their ST will remain
subject to achievement of the financial and non-financial KPIs as set by the Board.

This leaver provision enhances Spark Infrastructure’s risk management by:

. encouraging retention;

. allowing discovery of any factors that could contribute to financial restatement that may result in forfeiture
of reward;

. allowing for a review of Executive behaviours to ensure they have complied with Spark Infrastructure’s
ethical and risk management guidelines and standards of business conduct;

. encouraging the establishment and maintenance of a sound management legacy; and

. maintaining Securityholder alignment for a longer period.

Can Executives hedge their
awards?

Executives are not permitted to hedge any equity grants
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7.  Employment contract key terms

Each Executive, including the MD, has a formal employment agreement. These employment agreements are of a continuing
nature and have no fixed term of service. There were no changes to the employment agreements for the Executives in 2016.

The key terms of the employment agreements for the MD and other Executives are summarised below:

Managing Director Permanent 6 months 12 months’ Fixed Remuneration

Chief Financial Officer Permanent 3 months 6 months’ Fixed Remuneration

General Counsel / Company
Secretary

Permanent 3 months 6 months' Fixed Remuneration

8. Remuneration governance

The Board, RemCo, external advisors and management work together closely to apply our remuneration principles and ensure our
remuneration strategy supports sustainable Securityholder value, while always maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. The diagram below represents Spark Infrastructure remuneration decision making framework.

With advice from

Based on

Proper accountability: crealing
performance largets that are withiri the
coniral or operational ifluence of.
management, faking inlo consideration me
significant mianty ownership nterests

_comprsing the porifofio of assets
Prudent growth: not mcemmsmg growlh for
__growth's sake
Tmnsparency‘ ensunng that simctures and
_measures are fransparent and coherent such
1 1t inveslors are ab[e to readly understand '
. them '

The composition of the RemCo is set out on page 27 of this Annual Report. Further information on the RemCo’s role,
responsibilities and membership can be viewed at www.sparkinfrastructure.com/about/governance.
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8.1 Use of remuneration advisors

The RemCo appointed Emst & Young (‘EY”) as its external remuneration advisor during 2016. EY provided both information on
current market practice and independent input into key remuneration decisions.

The RemCo has established protocols to ensure that advice provided by advisors is free from undue influence from the members
of the KMP to whom the advice relates.

During 2016, EY provided the RemCo with:

¢ Market remuneration information; and
*  Assistance with the development of changes {o the remuneration framework.

No remuneration recommendations were provided by EY or any other advisor during the year.
8.2 Security Trading Policy

Spark Infrastructure Securities Trading Policy applies to all KMP. The policy prohibits employees from dealing in Spark
Infrastructure securities while in possession of material non-public information relevant to Spark Infrastructure. Spark
Infrastructure’s Trading Policy may be viewed at; www.sparkinfrastructure.com/about/governance.

9. Non-Executive Director fees
9.1 Approach to Non-Executive Director fees

Remuneration for NEDs is designed to ensure that Spark Infrastructure can attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced
directors. Unlike fees for Executives, fees for NEDs are fixed and not linked to performance. However, all current NEDs are
expected to hold securities in Spark Infrastructure to reflect alignment with Securityholder interests.

NED fees are reviewed annually utilising external market data or the advice of an independent consulting firm. NED fees take the

following matters into consideration:

e The Board Chair's fee is inclusive of the committee membership fee and is presented as one figure for 2016. The "bundling”
of fees replaces the historic fee arrangement whereby the Board Chair received separate Board Chair and committee fees,
and is consistent with market practice;

e The Board takes into account the relative workloads of committees in setting the fees applicable to committee chairs and
committee members;

e  Members of Board committees shall be eligible to receive a committee membership fee in addition to the base NED fee; and

e In addition, NEDs may be appointed to special purpose committees established from time to time (e.g. the Due Diligence
Committee was established in 2015 for the purposes of the TransGrid transaction and associated equity raise).

In exceptional circumstances (such as in the case of the TransGrid transaction), NEDs who are members of special purpose
committees may receive a one-off committee membership fee in addition to their other fees (for regular Board duties) to recognise
the significant additional workload. These special purpose committee membership fees are determined by the Board.
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9.2  Schedule of fees
The schedule of fees for NEDs during 2016 is set out in the table below.

~ ~ . ‘ | 2016 AND 2017 FEE® 2015 FEE
‘ROLE ‘ . . - o ) ‘ %
Board Chair 296,750 268,000
Non-Executive Director 127,000 122,000
Audit Risk and Compliance Committee Chair 39,000 37,500
Audit Risk and Compliance Committee member 19,500 19,000
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Chair 33,500 32,000
Nomination and Remuneration Committee member 16,750 16,000

{In 2015 the Board determined to increase NED fees (with effect from 1 January 2016) by approx1mately 4% to maintain alignment with market
standards. NED fees will not increase in 2017.

@ The Board Chair fee is inclusive of fees for committee membership and will be presented as one figure gomg forward. The “bundling” of fees
recognises the legacy fee arrangement whereby the Board Chair previously received separate Board and committee fees.

Except for the payment of statutory superannuation entitiements (where applicable), NEDs do not receive any other post-
employment benefits. The fees above include any allowances for statutory superannuation entitiements.

The aggregate fee limit for NEDs approved by Securityholders is $2 million, and is unchanged from 2015. There will be no change to
the aggregate fee for 2017 from 2016.

9.3  Actual Remuneration of Spark Infrastructure NEDs

The ann Ds (inclusive of statutory superannuation) for 2016 and 2015 were:

Current Non-Executive Directors

Douglas McTaggart . a5 e e g
o205 et e’ 794
Andrew Fay® N B B e
' 2015 166,758 - 15,842 ' 182,600
Anne McDonald a3 e e PR
o5 te024 152 7500
Christine McLoughin 2016 e B - T
2015 1551 N 12,782 47333
Karen Penrosef! L kg e 146,500
05 166,758 o 15842 182,600
Kelth Tumer® L owne . iwm - . B
015 150800 - ) ' 150,800
Retired Non-Executive Directors
Brian Sculin® 006 106484 . 8,354 114,838
2015 e 19046 - 290,667
Cheryl Bart? L O . ; ~ ‘ * -
015 50587 4,806 55,393
TOTAL o 0% s wEM 1125087
2015 1,108,010 84,177 1,192,187

 Contributions to personal superannuation on behalf of NEDs are deducted from their overall fee entitlements.

@ Dr McTaggart was appointed on 11 December 2015 and appointed Chair on 20 May 2016, Mr Scullin retired on 20 May 2016 and Ms Bart retired
on 22 May 2015. The amounts included for Dr McTaggart, Mr Scullin and Ms Bart represent payments made or payable relating to the period during
which they were NEDs.

@ 2015 fees for Mr Fay and Ms Penrose are inclusive of the $3,200 per meeting payment received as members of the Due Diligence Committee.
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Spark Infrastructure
Directors Report

Investment Portfolio Board Fees

A number of NEDs are also directors on the Boards of Spark Infrastructure’s asset businesses: SA Power Networks, Victoria
Power Networks and TransGrid (the “Investment Portfolio Boards") and are entitled to receive fees separate to those paid for their
role as NEDs of Spark Infrastructure.

Set out below are details regarding Investment Portfolio Board fees for the relevant Spark Infrastructure NEDs in 2016:

TransGrid

Keith Turner - Non-Executive Director ($90,000) and Chair of TransGrid Environmental Health and Safety Committee ($7,500)

SA Power Networks

Andrew Fay - Non-Execufive Director ($75,000), Chair of Audit Committee ($15,000), Member of Risk Management and
Compliance Committee ($10,000) and Member of Remuneration Committee ($10,000)

Keith Turner - Non-Executive Director ($75,000)

Victoria Power Networks

Anne McDonald -  Non-Executive Director ($75,000), Chair of Audit Committee ($15,000), Member of Risk Management and
Compliance Committee ($10,000)

Andrew Fay - Non-Executive Director ($75,000) and Member of Remuneration Committee ($10,000)

Keith Turner - Non-Executive Director ($75,000)

Dr Turner wilt retire from the Spark Board in 2017 after a tenure of eight years, but will remain as an independent nominee director
of the Boards of TransGrid, SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks.

Directors on the Investment Portfolio Boards have separate corporate responsibilities to each company of which they are a
director. The directors duties they owe to the investment companies are separate and distinct from their responsibilities as NEDs
of Spark Infrastructure. Fees received in their capacity as directors on the Investment Portfolio Boards are to compensate for
those separate additional responsibilities.

NED representation on these Boards reflects Spark Infrastructure’s role in overseeing and controlling the governance of its asset

businesses, and facilitates a two way flow of information and expertise. This is important to Spark Infrastructure as a key strategic

driver is the active management and governance of our asset businesses. NED representation on the Investment Portfolio Boards

helps ensure Spark Infrastructure:

e  maintains its portfolio of concentrated significant minority interests, and the ability to influence outcomes and drive
performance;

e continues to have an active role in driving performance from the asset level management teams; and
e has an experienced team of executives with deep knowledge of the regulation of network assets in Australia and
demonstrated expertise in improving productivity and cost efficiency.

In 2018, Investment Portfolio Board director fees were determined and paid for by SA Power Networks and Victoria Power
Networks to the relevant Spark Infrastructure NEDs. Note the Spark Infrastructure MD and CFO were both directors on the SA
Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks boards in 2016. However, fees for their services were paid to Spark Infrastructure.

TransGrid compensates Spark Infrastructure for services provided to the TransGrid board, which Spark Infrastructure distributes to
the Spark Infrastructure NEDs who are also TransGrid board members, with any residual remaining with Spark Infrastructure.
The MD was also a TransGrid board member, but did not receive any fees in respect of this position in 2016.

For the avoidance of doubt, director fees for Investment Portfolic Boards do not form part of the aggregate fee limit for Spark
Infrastructure.
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Deloitte.

The Board of Directors

Spark Infrastructure RE Limited '

as responsible entity of Spark Infrastructure Trust
Level 25, 259 George St

SYDNEY NSW 2000

27 February 2017

Dear Directors
Spark Infrastructure Trust

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
A.B.N. 74 490 121 060

Grosvenor Place

225 George Street

Sydney NSW 2000

PO Box N250 Grosvenor Place
Sydney NSW 1220 Australia

DX 10307SSE

Tel: +61 (0) 2 9322 7000
Fax: +61 (0) 2 9322 7001
www.deloitte.com.au

In accordance with section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001, I am pleased to provide
the following declaration of independence to the Directors of Spark Infrastructure RE

Limited, as responsible entity of Spark Infrastructure Trust.

As lead audit partner for the audit of the financial statements of Spark Infrastructure
Trust for the financial year ended 31 December 2016, I declare that to the best of my

knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in

relation to the audit; and

(li) any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Yours sincerely

T&lofe Fovche Tihmndou

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Jason Thorne
Partner
Chartered Accountants

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Spark Infrastructure
Directors’ Declaration

Directors' Declaration
The Directors declare that:

(8)  in the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Trust will be able to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable;

(b) in the Directors' opinion, the attached financial statements and notes thereto are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
including compliance with accounting standards and giving a true and fair view of the financial position and performance of the Trust

and the Consolidated Entity;
(c)  the Directors have been given the declarations required by section 295A of the Corporations Act 2007; and

(d)  the attached financial statements are in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as stated in Note 1 to the financial
statements.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors made pursuant to section 295(5) of the Corporations Act 2001.

On behalf of the Directors:
\ i
/
I\,
D McTaggart R Francis
Chair Managing Director
Sydney
27 February 2017
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Spark Infrastructure
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive income
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
Notes $'000 $000
Income from associates:
- Share of equity profits 6(c) 145,290 161,465
~ Interestincome 3(a) 91,623 81,512
236,913 242,977
Gain on derivative contracts 5,772 24,295
Other income — interest 1,230 3,333
243,915 270,605
Interest expense — other 3(b) (4,554) (3,589)
General and administrative expenses . 3(c) (13,545) (14,196)
Profit before Income Tax and Loan Note Interest 225,816 252,820
Interest expense - Loan Notes (118,582) (111,034)
Profit before Income Tax Attributable to Securityholders 107,234 , 141,786
Income tax expense 4 (a) (26,151) (53,762)
Net Profit after Income Tax Attributable to Securityholders 81,083 88,024
Other Comprehensive Income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
- Share of associates’ actuarial gain on defined benefit plans 13 5,891 33,435
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
~  Share of associates’ (loss)/gain on hedges 12 (2,050) 17,763
Income tax expense related to components of other
comprehensive income {700) (16,575)
Other comprehensive income for the Financial Year 3,141 34,623
Total Comprehensive Income for the Financial Year Attributable to
Securityholders 84,224 122,647
Earnings per Security
Weighted average number of stapled securities (No'000) 15 1,682,011 1,478,695
Profit before income tax and Loan Note interest ($'000) ‘ | 225,816 . 252,820
Basic earnings per security before income tax and Loan Note interest
(cents) 15 13.43¢ 17.10¢
Eamings used fo calculate earnings per security ($'000) 81,083 88,024
Basic earnings per security based on net profit atributable fo
Securityholders (cents)

15 4.82¢ 5.95¢
(Diluted earnings per security are the same as basic earnings per security). :

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 53 - 81.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2016

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables from associates
Other financial assets

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investments in associates;

- Investments accounted for using the equity method
- Loans fo associates

- Loan notes to associates

Other financial assets

Total Non-Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Payables
Loan Note interest payable to Securityholders

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

Payables

Loan Notes attributable to Securityholders
Interest bearing liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Spark Infrastructure

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015

Notes $'000 $'000
22 (a) 100,985 18,284
5 8,512 10,578
1,748

2,154 811

111,651 31,421

126 147

6 (d) 2,494,712 2,495,256
7 680,627 745,601

8 237,444 237,444
214,369

3,412,909 3,692,817

3,524,560 3,724,238

3,448 6,822

59,711 59,711

63,159 66,533

1,226 1,907

9 1,061,724 1,061,704

10 203,422

4 (c) 261,167 234,317
1,324,117 1,501,350

1,387,276 1,567,883

2,137,284 2,156,355
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position {continued)
as at 31 December 2016

Equity

Equity attributable to Parent Entity
- lssued capital

- Reserves

- Retained earnings

Total Equity

Total Equity attributable to Securityholders is as follows:
Total Equity
Loan Notes attributable to Securityholders

Total Equity and Loan Notes

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 53 - 81.

Spark Infrastructure

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015

Notes $'000 $'000
1 1,199,119 1,303,404
12 (18,231) (17,404)
13 956,396 870,355
2,137,284 2,156,355

2,137,284 2,156,355

1,061,724 1,061,704

3,199,008 3,218,059
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Spark Infrastructure
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Issued Reserves Retained
Capital Earnings Total
Notes $000 $'000 $000 $000

2015
Balance at 1 January 2015 1,115,263 (28,622) 758,927 1,845,568
Net profit for the Financial Year - - 88,024 88,024
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 12,13 - 11,218 23,404 34,622
Total comprehensive income for the Financial Year - 11,218 111,428 122,646
Capital distributions 11 (68,919) - - (68,919)
Contributions of equity (net of issue costs) 1 257,060 - - 257,060
Balance at 31 December 2015 1,303,404 (17,404) 870,355 2,156,355
2016
Balance at 1 January 2016 1,303,404 (17,404) 870,355 2,156,355
Net profit for the Financial Year - - 81,083 81,083
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 12,13 - (1,817) 4,958 3,141
Total comprehensive income for the Financial Year - (1,817) 86,041 84,224
Recognition of share-based payments 12 - 990 - 990
Capital distributions 11 (104,285) - - (104,285)
Balance at 31 December 2016 1,199,119 (18,231) 956,396 2,137,284

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 53 - 81.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Distributions from associates — preferred partnership capital
Distributions from associates — other

Interest received from associates

Distributions from derivative contracts

Finance costs paid on derivative contracts

Interest received — other

Interest paid — other

Other expenses

Net Cash Inflow Related to Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Repayment of borrowings by associates

Proceeds from divestment of derivative contracts

Transaction costs paid on derivative contracts

Loan notes advanced to NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust
Subscription for units in NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust
Subscription for units in NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) Related to Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of stapled securities

Payment of issue costs

Drawdown of external borrowings

Repayment of external borrowings

Payment of external borrowing costs

Distributions to Securityholders:

- Loan Note interest

- Capital distributions

Net Cash (Outflow)/Inflow Related to Financing Activities

Net Increasel(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Current
Year

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the Current Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of the Current Year

Notes to the financial statements are included on pages 53 - 81.

Spark Infrastructure

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015

Notes $000 $'000
2 69,826 69,635
2 79,848 44,590
2 93,689 82,228
22,952 32,535

(7,743) (10,062

1,061 3,794

(4,375) (2,680)

(14,608) {12,690)

22 (c) 240,650 207,350
(31)

2 64,974 -
210,708 -

{4,031) (3,841)

- (237,444)

- (344,498)

(153,342)

271,651 {739,156)

405,424

{1,733) {10,868)

15,000 205,000

{220,000) -

(1,604)

{118,582) (103,378)

(104,285) (68,919)

{429,600) 425,655

82,701 {106,151)

18,284 124,435

22 (a) 100,985 18,284
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Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2016

1. Summary of Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and Interpretations, and comply with other requirements of the law.

Accounting standards include Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (“A-IFRS"). Compliance with A-IFRS
ensures that these consolidated financial statements and notes of the Trust and the Group comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"} for a for profit entity.

These consolidated financial statements are for the consolidated entity (“Spark Infrastructure”) consisting of Spark Infrastructure Trust (the
“Parent Entity” or the “Trust") and its controlled entities (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Information in respect of the Parent Entity in this financial report relates to the Trust. The financial information for the Parent Entity, disclosed
in Note 24, has been prepared on the same basis as the financial statements for the Group.

These consofidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain financial
instruments. Cost is based on the fair values of consideration given in exchange for assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars,
unless otherwise noted.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited (“Spark RE” or the “Company”) on 27 February
2017.

New and revised standards and interpretations

Standards and Interpretations affecting amounts reported in the Current Year

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the Current Year. Their adoption has not had any
significant impact on the amounts reported in this financial report but may affect the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.

Adoption of new and revised Standards

New and Revised Standard Requirements
IAASB 2015-1 Amendments to Amends a number of pronouncements as a result of the IASB's 2012-2014 annual improvements
IAustralian Accounting Standards — cycle.

Annual Improvements to Australian

IAccounting Standards 2012-2014 Cycle Key amendments include:

IAASB 5 — Change in methods of disposal;

IAASB 7 - Servicing contracts and applicability of the amendments to AASB 7 to condensed interim
financial statements;

AASB 119 — Discount rate: regional market issue; and

IAASB 134 — Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’.

IAASB 2015-2 Amendments to Amends AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements to provide clarification regarding the

Australian Accounting Standards — disclosure requirements in AASB 101. Incudes narrow-focus amendments to address concerns

Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to  |about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities are able to use

IAASB 101 judgements when applying a Standard in determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements.

IAASB 2015-3 Amendments to Completes the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and

Australian Accounting Standards arising [Interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively be withdrawn.
from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031
Materiality
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)

Standards and interpretations in issue not yet adopted

At the date of authorisation of the financial report, the following Standards and Interpretations relevant to Spark Infrastructure were in issue but
not yet effective.

Standard/Interpretation Effective for the |Expected to be initially

annual reporting |applied in the financial
period beginning on year ending

AASB 2016-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Recognition of Deferred Tax 1 January 2017 31 December 2017
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

AASB 2016-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Disclosure Initiative: 1 January 2017 31 December 2017
Amendments to AASB 107
AASB 2016-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Classification and 1 January 2018 31 December 2018

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2014), AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian 1 January 2018 31 December 2018
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9’ (December 2014)

IAASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 2014-5 ‘Amendments to 1 January 2018 31 December 2018
Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15’

AASB 16 Leases 1 January 2019 31 December 2019

The Directors anticipate that the above standards and interpretations will not have a direct material impact on the financial report of the Group
in the year of initial application.

Significant Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation and presentation of this report:

(@

Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period. Cost is based on the fair values of consideration given in exchange for
assets. All amounts are presented in Australian dollars, unless otherwise noted. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:
= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Trust and its controlled entities as at 31 December
2016. Control is achieved where the Trust has power over the investee; is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. Where control of an entity is obtained during the financial
period, its results are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income from the effective date of control.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses within the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Acquisition of Assets

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given up,
equity issued or liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition plus incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
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Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)
{(d) Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured at
amortised cost with any difference betwesn the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in profit and loss
over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method.
(e} Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised and added to the cost of these assets, until such time
that the assets are ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.
{fy Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks and investments in money market instruments.

(9) Creditors and Accruals

Trade creditors and accruals are recognised when there is an obligation to make future payments resulting from the purchase of goods
and services.

(h) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised when Spark Infrastructure becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Derivative Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised when Spark Infrastructure becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Transaction costs directly aftributable to
all other financial assets and liabilities adjust the fair value of the financial asset or liability on initial recognition.

Financial Assets/Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss

Financial assets/liabilities are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial assetfliability is either held for trading or it
is designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset/liability may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition if.
= such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or
= the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or
= itforms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and AASB 9 Financial Instruments permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement, at each reporting date, recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend, interest earned or interest liabilities on the financial asset or financial liability and is included in the ‘gain on derivative contracts’
line item.

Derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified as held for trading.
Spark Infrastructure derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, its obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Financial Instruments (continued)
Derecognition of Financial Assets/Liabilities

Spark Infrastructure derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition of a
financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that has been recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction Costs on the Issue of Stapled Securities (including Loan Notes)

Transaction costs arising on the issue of stapled securities (including Loan Notes) are recognised directly in either debt or equity as a
reduction of the proceeds of the stapled securities (including Loan Notes) to which the costs relate. Transaction costs are the costs that
are incurred directly in connection with the issue of those stapled securities and which would not have been incurred had those stapled
securities (including Loan Notes) not been issued.

Interest, Dividends and Distributions

Interest, dividends and distributions are classified as expenses, distributions of profit or a return of capital consistent with the Statement of
Financial Position classification of the related debt or equity instruments.

{i) Goods and Services Tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax {(“GST"), except:
e where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority, it is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of expense; or
o for receivables and payables, which are recognised inclusive of GST.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the
Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and
financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(i) Employee Benefits
Wages, Salaries, Annual Leave and Other Employee Benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and other employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months
of the reporting date are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long Service Leave

The Group’s net obligation for long service leave is measured as the present value of expected future cash outflows to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are
measured using discount rates based on the high quality corporate bond rate. Liabilities recognised in respect of long term employee
benefits are measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the Group in respect of services
provided by employees up to reporting date.

Cash Settled Long Term and Deferred Incentives
For long term and deferred incentives issued in 2014, a liability is calculated for the services acquired (or benefits provided), measured
initially at the fair value of the liability. At the end of each reporting period until the liability is settled, and at the date of settlement, the fair

value of the liability is remeasured, with any changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss for the period. The fair value of the long
term and deferred incentive is expensed over the vesting period.
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Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)
(i) Employee Benefits (continued)
Equity Settled Long Term and Deferred Incentives

Equity-settled long term and deferred incentives issued from 2015 onwards are share-based payments to employees and others providing
similar services and are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. The fair value determined at the grant date
of the equity-settied share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the equity-settled
employee benefits reserve.

(k) Income Tax
Current Tax

Current tax is calculated by reference to the amount of income taxes payable or recoverable in respect of the taxable profit or tax loss for
the year. Itis calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax
for current and prior periods is recognised as a liability (or asset) to the extent that it is unpaid (or refundable).

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is accounted for using the comprehensive balance sheet liability method in respect of temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in these consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base of those items. In principle, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable amounts will be available against which deductible temporary differences
or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary differences giving rise to them arise from the initial recognition of
assets and liabilities (other than as a result of a business combination) which affects neither taxable income nor accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in associates except where Spark
Infrastructure is able to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with these investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year(s) when the asset and liability
giving rise to them are realised or settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which Spark Infrastructure expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and Deferred Tax For the Year

Current and deferred tax is recognised as an expense or income in the profit and loss, except when it relates to items credited or debited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised directly in equity, or where it arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, in which case it is taken into account in the determination of goodwill or excess.

Income tax expense is not brought to account in respect of the Trust, as pursuant to the Australian {axation laws the Trust is not liable for

income tax provided that its taxable income (including any assessable realised capital gains) is fully distributed to the Securityholders
each year.
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Summary of Accounting Policies (continued)
{k) Income Tax (continued)
Tax Consolidation Legislation

Tax consolidated groups have been formed within Spark Infrastructure, whereby wholly-owned Australian resident entities have
combined together to form a tax consolidated group that will be taxed under Australian taxation law as if it was a single entity. Tax
expensefincome, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of members of a tax consolidated
group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax consolidated group using the ‘separate taxpayer
within group’ approach. Current tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and tax credits of the
members of the tax consolidated group are recognised by the head entity in the relevant tax consolidated group. Further details are
provided in Note 4.

Taxation of financial arrangements

The Tax Laws Amendment (Taxation of Financial Arrangements) Act 2009 (TOFA legislation) was applicable to the tax consolidated
groups for tax years beginning 1 January 2011. The TOFA legislation has not had any material effect on the tax expense of the tax
consolidated groups. No election was made to bring pre-commencement financial arrangements into the TOFA regime.

() Investments in Associates

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. The associates are entities over which Spark
Infrastructure has significant influence and that are neither subsidiaries nor joint ventures.

Under the equity method, investments in the associates are carried in the Statement of Financial Position at cost plus post-acquisition
changes in share of net assets of the associates. After application of the equity method, Spark Infrastructure determines whether it is
necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to its net investment in associates. When necessary, the entire carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in accordance with AASB 136 /mpairment of Assefs as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (the higher of value in use and fair value less costs to self} with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised in accordance with AASB 136
Impairment of Assets to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Spark Infrastructure’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the profit and loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in equity (such as actuarial gains or losses) is recognised in reserves/retained earnings, as appropriate. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. Dividends receivable from
associates are recognised in the individual entity's profit and loss.

{m) Loans and Receivables

Loans to associates and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less any impairment.

(n) Revenue Recognition

Distribution and Interest Revenue

Distribution revenue from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.

Interest revenue is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

(o) Investments in Subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries by the Parent Entity are recorded at cost. Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using
the acquisition method.
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(p) Contributions from Customers for Capital Works

Non-refundable contributions received from customers towards the cost of extending or modifying the network are recognised as revenue
and an asset respectively once control is gained of the cash contribution or asset and the customer is connected to the network of either
Victoria Power Networks or SA Power Networks.

Customer contributions of cash and customer contributions of assets are measured at fair value at the date either Victoria Power
Networks or SA Power Networks gain control of the cash contribution or asset. Fair value is based on the regulatory return expected to
be derived from the regulatory asset base ("RAB”) as a result of the specific extension or modification to the network.

(q) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

The preparation of this financial report required the use of certain critical accounting estimates and exercises judgement in the process of
applying the accounting policies. The estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including reasonable expectation of future events. The Directors believe the estimates and judgements are reasonable.
Actual results in the future may differ from those reported.

Spark Infrastructure equity accounts the results of its associates (See Note 1(1)) and within these results there are several accounting
estimates and judgements. These estimates and judgements will have a direct impact on the results reported by Spark Infrastructure as
it recognises its share of profits or losses and post-acquisition movements in equity, which adjust the carrying amount of the investments
in the associates. The key accounting estimates and judgements used in the preparation of this report are as follows:

¢ Accounting for Acquisitions

On 15 December 2005, Spark Infrastructure acquired a 49% interest in each of three electricity distribution businesses, CitiPower and
Powercor in Victoria (combined businesses referred to as Victoria Power Networks) and SA Power Networks in South Australia.

This assessment of fair value for Victoria Power Networks and SA Power Networks by Spark Infrastructure resulted in a notional increase
in the carrying value of certain depreciable assets and amortisable intangible assets, which are depreciated/amortised over the estimated
useful life of such assets, extending up to 200 years. As a result of this, the share of Spark Infrastructure’s equity accounted profits has
been adjusted by additional depreciation and amortisation arising from this increase in the carrying vaiue.

On 16 December 2015, Spark Infrastructure acquired a 15.01% interest in NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW
Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust (together referred to as TransGrid). Spark Infrastructure is required to reflsct its equity
accounted investments in the businesses by reference to its share of the fair value of the net assets of the businesses.

¢ Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, Spark Infrastructure tests whether there are any indicators of impairment. Each associate, being Victoria Power
Networks, SA Power Networks and TransGrid (the “investment portfolio”), is regarded as a separate cash generating unit (*CGU") for the
purposes of such testing. If any indicators are identified, the recoverable amounts are determined as the higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use.

If such indicators were determined to exist, fair value less costs to sell calculations would be used to assess Spark Infrastructure’s
investment portfolio and to confirm that their carrying values did not exceed their respective recoverable amounts.

The following key assumptions would be used in the assessment of fair value less costs to sell:
»  Fair value less costs fo sell assessments based on discounted cash flow projections over a period of 10 years;
» Cash flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by management containing assumptions about business
conditions, growth in RAB and future regulatory return;
= Appropriate discount rates specific to each CGU; and
= Appropriate terminal values based on RAB multiples for regulated activities and EBITDA multiples for unregulated activities that
reflect recent transmission or distribution transaction multiples.

Cash flow projections for a 10 year period are deemed appropriate as the investment portfolio assets operate within regulated industries
that reset every five years, and have electricity transmission or distribution assets that are long life assets.

Sensitivity analysis would be undertaken regarding the impact of possible changes in key assumptions.

Fair value less costs to sell is measured using inputs that are unobservable in the market and are therefore deemed fo be level 3 fair
value measurements in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.
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(q) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (continued)

* Impairment of Assets (continued)

The Directors consider the Australian Competition Tribunal’s upholding of the AER's Final Determination for SA Power Networks as a
potential indicator of impairment. Accordingly, fair value less costs to sell calculations were used to assess Spark Infrastructure’s
investment in SA Power Networks to confirm that its carrying value did do not exceed its recoverable value.

The Directors are satisfied that there is no indication that either Victoria Power Networks or TransGrid have suffered an impairment loss.

o Fair Value of Customer Contributions and Gifted Assets at Victoria Power Networks and SA Power Networks

With effect from 1 January 2014 Spark Infrastructure changed its basis of estimating the fair value of customer contributions and gifted
assets from 'depreciated replacement cost' to estimating the net present value of the future cashflows expected to be derived from the
RAB as a result of the specific extension or modification to the network, as described in Note 1(p). This change better reflects the value
for customer contributions and gifted assets included in the RAB, on which future regulatory returns are derived.

» Significant influence over NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW Electricity Networks Operations
Holdings Trust

Note 6 describes that NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust are
associates of Spark Infrastructure although Spark Infrastructure only has a 15.01% ownership interest. Spark Infrastructure has
significant influence over NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust by
virtue of its right under the Shareholders Agreement to appoint one director for every 10% shareholding. In addition, Spark Infrastructure
has a special right to appoint a second director while its ownership remains at or above 15.01%. This right is particular to Spark
Infrastructure.

o Deferred Tax Arising on the Investment in NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW Electricity Networks
Operations Holdings Trust

Deferred tax arising on the initial investment in NSW Electricity Networks Assets Holdings Trust and NSW Electricity Networks
Operations Holdings Trust is considered tfo relate to temporary differences that give rise to no accounting or taxable profit. As such,
deferred tax is not recognised under the initial recognition exemption. Furthermore, subsequent changes to the unrecognised deferred
tax are not recorded.

¢ Deferred Tax Assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that there are sufficient taxable amounts available against which
deductible temporary differences or unused tax losses and tax offsets can be utilised and they are expected to reverse in the forseeable
future. As at 31 December 2016 (2015: nil) there are no amounts unrecognised on the basis that the above criteria was not met.

(1) Rounding of Amounts

As permitted by ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financials/Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191, dated 24 March 2016 and in
accordance with that Corporations Instrument, amounts in the Directors’ Report and the financial report are rounded off to the nearest
thousand doliars, unless otherwise indicated.

2. Segment Information

AASB 8 Operating Segments requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its
performance. Four segments are reported:

e Victoria Power Networks — the 49% interest in two electricity distribution businesses in Victoria (i.e. CitiPower and Powercor);

o SA Power Networks — the 49% interest in the electricity distribution business in South Australia;

o TransGrid — the 15.01% interest in the electricity transmission business in New South Wales (i.e. NSW Electricity Networks Assets
Holdings Trust (NSW Electricity Networks Assets) and NSW Electricity Networks Operations Holdings Trust (NSW Electricity
Networks Operations)); and

e Other — which represents the divested economic interest in DUET Group.

The segments noted also fairly represent the Group’s geographical segments determined by location within Australia.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results from continuing operations by reportable segments.
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3.

4,

(1

Profit for the Financial Year
(@) Income
Income from associates:
- Share of equity accounted profits

- Interest income

{b) Expenses
Interest expense — other:

— Interest costs and other associated costs of senior debt

(¢) General and Administrative Expenses
Staff costs — salaries and short term benefits
Staff costs — post employment benefits
Staff costs — incentives
Total staff costs
Directors’ fees — short term benefits
Directors’ fees — post employment benefits
Depreciation
Costs associated with investing activities

Other expenses

Income Taxes
Current tax
Current tax expense in respect of the Current Year
Adjustments recognised in relation to current tax in prior years(

Deferred tax
Deferred tax expense recognised in the Current Year
Adjustments recognised in relation to deferred tax in prior years(!)

Total income tax expense relating to continuing operations

Amendments to the treatment of customer contributions and gifted assets reported in Spark Infrastructure Holdings No.2 Pty Ltd's income tax retums.

Spark Infrastructure

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$°000 $'000
145,290 161,465
91,623 81,512
236,913 242,977
4,554 3,589

2,980 2,600

161 142

2,700 1,466

5,841 4,208

1,045 1,108

80 84

62 71

2,193 5,334

4,324 3,391
13,545 14,196

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $'000

(241) (28,789)
(104,168) -
(104,409) (28,789)
(25,910) (24,973)
104,168 -
78,258 (24,973)
(26,151) (53,762)
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Income Taxes (continued)

(a) Income Tax Recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

(b)

(c)

Comprehensive Income

Profit before tax for continuing operations

Income tax expense calculated at 30% (2015: 30%)

Add/(deduct):

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit

Losses written off on Australian Tax Office ("ATO") setllement of SA Power
Networks and Victoria Power Networks financing matters

Effect of Prior Year adjustments in SA Power Networks tax base
Tax effect on operating results of the Trusts

Total Current Year income tax expense

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $°000
107,234 141,786
(32,170) (42,536)
(180) (167)
(24,655)

7,081 10,733

(882) 2,863
(26,151) {63,762)

The tax rate of 30% used above is the current Australian corporate tax rate. There was no change in the corporate tax rate during

the Current Year.

Income Tax Recognised Directly in Equity

Share of associates' reserves

Income tax expense

Deferred Tax Balances

Temporary Differences
Timing differences - other

Investment in associates

Unused tax losses

Tax losses

Tax Consolidation

Relevance of Tax Consolidation to Spark Infrastructure:

(700) (16,575)
(700) (16,575)
(2,313) 2,180
(410,881) (280,929)
(413,194) (278,749)
152,027 44,432
(261,167) (234,317)

Spark Infrastructure Holdings No.1 Pty Ltd (“SIH No.1"), Spark Infrastructure Holdings No.2 Pty Ltd ("SIH No.2"), and Spark Infrastructure
Holdings No.3 Pty Ltd (“SIH No.3") and their wholly owned entities have each formed a tax consolidated group and therefore each group is
taxed as a single entity. The head entity within each tax consolidated group is SIH No.1, SIH No.2 and SIH No.3 respectively. The members of
the tax consolidated groups are identified in Note 21.
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Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

4 Income Taxes (continued)
Nature of Tax Funding Arrangements and Tax Sharing Agreements

Entities within each tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding arrangement and a tax sharing agreement with their respective
head entities. Under the terms of the funding agreement, SIH No.1, SIH No.2, and SIH No.3 and each of the entities in the relevant tax
consolidated group have agreed to pay a tax equivalent payment to or from the head entity, based on the current tax asset of the entity. Such
amounts are reflected in amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the tax consolidated group.

The tax sharing agreement between members of the tax consolidated group provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax
liabilities between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in these
consolidated financial statements in respect of this agreement as payment of any amounts under the agreement is considered remote at this
time.

ATO Matters
The following is a summary of items that are in dispute with the ATO audit.
Victoria Power Networks Pty Ltd

(a) adenial of deductions for certain labour costs and motor vehicle running costs incurred during the years ended 31 December 2007 to
31 December 2010;

{b) the recognition of assessable income for assets transferred by customers to entities within the Victoria Power Networks consolidated
group during the years ended 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2010;

(c) a denial of deductions for rebates paid to customers by entities within the Victoria Power Networks consolidated group during the
years ended 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2010;

(d) a further consequential increase in the allowance of depreciation for the labour costs, motor vehicle running costs and transferred
assets during the years ended 31 December 2007 to 31 December 2010; and

{e)} adenial of deductions in respect of certain asset replacement projects during the years ended 31 December 2008 to 31 December
2010.

SA Power Networks Partnership

a) adenial of deductions for direct internal labour and motor vehicle costs incurred by SA Power Networks on self-constructed assets,
after separate favourable adjustments for asset replacement, on the grounds that they are of a capital nature, and a corresponding
allowance of tax depreciation deductions for those costs over the effective life of the assets.

As previously reported, both Victoria Power Networks and the SA Power Networks Partnership have obtained legal advice with regard to the
ongoing matters and will continue to vigorously defend their positions. The SA Power Networks Partnership partners and Victoria Power
Networks continue to actively engage with the ATO on these matters.

Details of these tax matters have been previously disclosed in the Spark Infrastructure Financial Statements.

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$°000 $'000

5. Receivables from Associates - Current
Victoria Power Networks 8,512 9,964
NSW Electricity Networks Operations - 614
8,512 10,578

Receivables from associates relates to interest receivable on loans to Victoria Power Networks and loan notes to NSW Electricity
Networks Operations per Notes 7 and 8. These receivables are expected to be settled in full within the next 12 months.
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6. Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method (continued)

(c) Summarised Financial Performance of Associates (continued)

Spark Infrastructure

Notes to the Financial Statements

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial performance (on a 100% basis) to the net profit/(loss) attributable to Spark
Infrastructure from SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks (on a 49% basis) and NSW Electricity Networks Assets and

NSW Electricity Networks Operations (on a 15.01% basis), recognised in the financial report:

Victoria Power Networks net profit
SA Power Networks net profit

NSW Electricity Networks Assets net loss

NSW Electricity Networks Operations net profit/(loss)

Adjustment in respect of customer contributions and gifted assets?
Adjustment in respect of regulated revenue cap®

Additional adjustments to share of equity profits

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $000
92,041 54,637
105,521 143,840
(3,790) (354)
9,520 (1,090)
(79,053) (79,695)
(1,770 -
22,821 44 127
145,290 161,465

a Differences in the measurement of the fair value of customer contributions and gifted assets under AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement (‘"AASB 137). Spark
Infrastructure changed its basis of estimating the fair value of customer contributions and gifted assets reported by SA Power Networks and Victoria Power
Networks with effect from 1 January 2014 from ‘depreciated replacement cost to estimating the net present value of the future cashflows expected to be derived

from the specific extension or modification to the network.

b Amounts in excess offunder the regulated revenue cap are deferred/accrued by SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks but not by TransGrid. Spark
Infrastructure makes adjustments to its share of TransGrid's equity accounted profits in order to reflect that these amounts will be retumed tofrecovered from

electricity consumers in future periods.

¢ Under the partnership agreement, Spark Infrastructure is entitled to an additional share of profit in SA Power Networks, which ensures that Spark Infrastructure
shares in 49% of the results of operations from SA Power Networks. Additional adjustments made to share of equity profits includes additional
depreciation/amortisation of fair value uplift of assets on acquisition of SA Power Networks and Victoria Power Networks.

(d) Movement in Carrying Amounts
Carrying amount at beginning of the Current Year
Subscription of units in NSW Electricity Networks Assets
Subscription of units in NSW Electricity Networks Operations
Share of profits after income tax
Preferred partnership distribution received — SA Power Networks
Distributions received — SA Power Networks
Distributions received — NSW Electricity Networks Assets
Distributions received — NSW Electricity Networks Operations
Share of associates’ comprehensive income recognised directly in equity

Carrying amount at end of the Current Year

(e} Contingent Liabilities

Spark Infrastructure’s share of contingent liabilities are provided in Note 17.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$000 $'000
2,495,256 1,898,979
- 344,498
- 153,342
145,290 161,465
{69,826) (69,635)
{49,490) (44,590)
(26,973) -
(3,385) -
3,840 51,197
2,494,712 2,495,256
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10.

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $'000

Loans to Associates - interest bearing
Victoria Power Networks 680,627 745,601

100 year loan to Victoria Power Networks at a fixed interest rate of 10.85% per annum. The loan is repayable at the discretion of the
borrower. An amount of $64,974,000 was repaid by the borrower to Spark Infrastructure during 2016 (2015: ni).

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$000 $'000
Loan notes to Associates - interest bearing
NSW Electricity Networks Operations 237,444 237,444

Loan notes advanced to NSW Electricity Networks Operations at the applicable bank bill interest rate plus a margin of 3.50% per
annum. The loan notes are redeemable at the discretion of the issuer, with a maximum maturity in December 2025.

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $'000

Loan Notes Attributable to Securityholders
Balance at beginning of the Financial Year 1,061,704 925,841
Issue of Loan Notes under Entitlement Offer & - 140,173
Issue costs associated with Loan Notes - (4,330)
Write back of deferred discount® 20 20
Balance at end of the Financial Year 1,061,724 1,061,704

2 Under the institutional tranche of the Entitiement Offer on 7 December 2015 and the retail tranche of the Entitlement Offer on 22 December 2015 additional securities
were raised at a price of $1.88 per security of which $0.65 per security was allocated to Loan Notes.

» The deferred discount represents the difference between the Loan Notes face value of $1.25 and the price of securities issued under the Distribution Reinvestment
Plan in September 2009 of $1.0862. The deferred discount is written back over the remaining term of the Loan Notes.

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $'000

Interest Bearing Liabilities
Bilateral corporate debt facilities - 205,000
Unamortised costs - (1,578)
- 203,422

On 13 November 2015, Spark Infrastructure entered into 3 and 5-year bilateral debt facilities of $225,000,000 and $25,000,000
respectively, replacing its previous corporate debt facilities. Spark Infrastructure pays an average margin of 112 basis points above the
applicable bank bill swap rate on amounts drawn from these facilities. The facilities are unsecured and mature on the 13 November
2018 and 13 November 2020,
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12.

13.

Spark Infrastructure

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$000 $'000
issued Capital
Balance at beginning of the Financial Year 1,303,404 1,115,263
Issue of new securities under Entitiement Offera - 265,251
Issue costs - {8,191)
Contributions of equity (net of issue costs) - 257,060
Capital distributions ® (104,285) (68,919)
Balance at end of the Financial Year 1,199,119 1,303,404

a Under the institutional tranche of the Entitiement Offer on 7 December 2015 and the retail tranche of the Entitiement Offer on 22 December 2015 additional securities

were raised at a price of $1.88 per security of which $1.23 per security was allocated to Issued Capital.

b Capital distributions of 3.75 cps on 15 September 2016 (250 cps on 15 September 2015) and 2.45 cps on 15 March 2016 (2.20 cps on 13 March 2015) were paid to

Securityholders during the year — refer Note 16.

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
Fully Paid Stapled Securities No.’000 No.'000
Balance at the beginning of the Financial Year 1,682,011 1,466,360
Issue of new securities under Entitlement Offer - 215,651
Balance at the end of the Financial Year 1,682,011 1,682,011

Year Ended Year Ended

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015

$000 $000

Reserves
Cash Flow Hedging Reserve
Balance at beginning of the Financial Year (17,404) (28,622)
Share of associates’ gains on hedges 2 (2,050) 17,763
Related tax benefit/(expense) 233 (6,545)
Recognition of share-based payments 990 -
Balance at end of the Financial Year {18,231) {17,404)

a The hedging reserve represents hedging gains and losses recognised on the effective portion of the cashflow hedges. The cumulative deferred gain or loss on the

hedge is recognised in profit or loss when the hedge transaction impacts the profit or loss.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$000 $'000

Retained Earnings
Balance at beginning of the Financial Year 870,355 758,927
Net profit after tax for the Financial Year 81,083 88,024
Share of associates’ actuariat gain recognised directly in retained earnings @ 5,891 33,435
Related tax expense {933) {10,031)
Balance at end of the Financial Year 956,396 870,355

a  Actuarial gains or losses on defined benefit superannuation plans operated by the investment portfolio assets are recognised directly in Retained Earnings.
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15.

16.

Spark Infrastructure

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$ $
Remuneration of External Auditor
Audit and review of the financial reports 268,500 258,500
Tax advice 306,500 248,000
Other accounting services 291,051
575,000 797,551
The auditor of Spark Infrastructure is Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$°000 $'000
Earnings per Security (“EPS”)
Profit before income tax and Loan Note interest 225,816 252,820
Weighted average number of securities (No'000) 1,682,011 1,478,695
Basic earnings per security before income tax and Loan Note interest (cents) 13.43¢ 17.10¢
Earnings used to calculate EPS 81,083 88,024
Basic earnings per security based on net profit attributable to Securityholders (cents) 4.82¢ 5.95¢
Basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS.
2016 2015
Cents Cents
per Total per Total
Security $'000 Security $'000
Distribution Paid and Payable
Distribution Paid:
Interim distribution in respect of year ended 31 December 2016 paid on 15
September 2016 (2015: 15 September 2015):
Interest on Loan Notes 3.50 58,870 3.50 51,323
Capital Distribution 3.75 63,075 250 36,659
7.25 121,945 6.00 87,982
Distribution Payable/Proposed:
Final distribution in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 payable
on 15 March 2017 (2015: 15 March 2016):
Interest on Loan Notes 3.55 59,711 3.55 59,712
Capital Distribution 3.70 62,234 245 41,209
7.25 121,945 8.00 100,921
Total paid and payable 14.50 243,890 12.00 188,903
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17.  Contingencies

Share of associates’ contingent liabilities

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$'000 $'000
44,743 26,632

The contingent liabilities relate to a number of guarantees provided to various parties by the investment portfolio assets. There are no

contingent liabilities or contingent assets in Spark Infrastructure.

18. Key Management Personnel (“KMP”) Compensation

The aggregate compensation made to Directors and other members of KMP of Spark Infrastructure is set out below:

Salary and Fees

Total STI Expense
Non-monetary Expense
Superannuation Expense
LTl Expense

LTI Transition Expense

Total Expense

19. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Directors

Details of the Directors remuneration are disclosed in Note 18.

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$ $

2,747,974 2,647,738
1,218,273 1,105,623
40,308 83,228
144,314 147,269
674,424 77,591
377,430 377,430
5,202,722 4,438,879

The relevant interest of each Director of Spark Infrastructure for the Current Year is as follows:

2016 Opening Balance Net Movement Closing Balance
1 January 2016 Acquired/(Disposed) 31 December 2016
(No.) (No.) (No.)
Dr Douglas McTaggart 50,000 70,000 120,000
Mr Rick Francis 23,942 23,942
Mr Andrew Fay 68,590 120,000 188,590
Ms Anne McDonald 61,000 61,000
Ms Christine McLoughlin 51,766 15,000 66,766
Ms Karen Penrose 38,824 11,176 50,000
Dr Keith Turner 75,706 75,706
Mr Brian Scullin® 77,648 .

(1) MrScullin retired from the Board on 20 May 2016.
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19. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

The relevant interest of each Director of Spark Infrastructure in respect of the Prior Year was as follows:

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

2015 Opening Balance Net Movement Closing Balance
1 January 2015 Acquired/(Disposed) 31 December 2015
(No.) (No)) (No.)
Mr Brian Scullin 10,000 67,648 77,648
Mr Rick Francis 18,500 5,442 23,942
Mr Andrew Fay 53,000 15,590 68,590
Ms Anne McDonald 48,500 12,500 61,000
Ms Christine McLoughlin 30,000 21,766 51,766
Dr Douglas McTaggart . 50,000 50,000
Ms Karen Penrose 25,000 13,824 38,824
Dr Keith Turner 58,500 17,206 75,706
Ms Cheryl Bart, AO @ 160,714

(1) DrMcTaggart was appointed to the Board on 11 December 2015.
{(2)  Ms Bart retired from the Board on 22 May 2015,

(b)  Group Executives

Details of the Group Executives remuneration are disclosed in Note 18.

The table below details the Spark Infrastructure securities in which Group Executives held relevant interests:

2016 Opening Balance Net Movement Closing Balance

1 January 2016 Acquired/{Disposed) 31 December 2016

(No.) (No.) (No.)

Mr Rick Francis 23,942 23,942
Mr Greg Botham

Ms Alexandra Finley

2015 Opening Balance Net Movement Closing Balance
1 January 2015 Acquired/(Disposed) 31 December 2015

{No.) (No.) {No.)

Mr Rick Francis 18,500 5,442 23,942
Mr Greg Botham -

Ms Alexandra Finley

(¢)  Responsible Entity
The responsible entity of the Trust is Spark RE.

(d KMP

KMP are those having the authority and responsibility for directing and controlling the activities of an enfity. The Directors and certain
employees that meet the definition of KMP are disclosed above along with their remuneration in Note 18. Securityholding details are disclosed

in Note 19(a) and Note 19(b).
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Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

19. Related Party Disclosures (continued)

(e}  Other Related Parties

Other related parties include associates, subsidiaries, and entities within Spark Infrastructure.
Associates

The details of ownership interests in associates are provided in Note 6. The details of interest receivable and loans provided to associates are
detailed in Notes 5, 7 and 8. Details of interest income on these loans are detailed in Note 3(a).

Subsidiaries

The details of ownership interest in subsidiaries are provided in Note 21. The terms of the tax sharing and tax funding agreements entered into
by SIH No.1, SIH No.2 and SIH No.3 with their subsidiaries are provided in Note 4.

Entities within Spark Infrastructure

There are loans receivable by the Trust from other entities within Spark Infrastructure, being Spark Infrastructure (Victoria) Pty Limited, Spark
Infrastructure (SA) Pty Limited, SIH No.3 and Spark Infrastructure Electricity Operations Trust.

20.  Subsequent Events

There were no events, other than those described in this report, that have arisen since the end of the Financial Year that have significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of Spark Infrastructure.

21.  Controlled Entities

2016 2015
Entity Country of Equity Equity
Incorporation Holdings Holdings
(%) (%)
Controlled entities of Spark Infrastructure Trust:
- Spark Infrastructure Holdings No. 1 Pty Limiteda Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Holdings No. 2 Pty Limited 2 Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Holdings No. 3 Pty Limited 2 Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Electricity Assets Trust Australia 100 100
Controlled entity of SIH No. 12
- Spark Infrastructure (Victoria) Pty Limited ® Australia 100 100
Controlled entities of SIH No. 2 2
- Spark Infrastructure (South Australia) Pty Limited ¢ Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure SA (No 1) Pty Limited ¢ Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure SA (No 2) Pty Limited ¢ Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure SA (No 3) Pty Limited ¢ Australia 100 100
Controlled entities of SIH No. 3 2 .
- Spark Infrastructure Holdings No. 4 Pty Limited (“SIH No.4")¢ Australia 100 100
_ Spark Infrastructure Holdings No. 5 Pty Limited (“SIH No. 5")4 Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure RE Ltdd Australfa 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Electricity Assets Pty Ltd¢ Australia 100 100
park tniras Y y Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Electricity Operations Trust Australia 100 100
- Spark Infrastructure Electricity Operations Pty Ltd ¢

a Head entity of a tax consolidated group.

b An entity within a tax consolidated group with SiH No. 1 as the head enity.
o An entity within a tax consolidated group with SIH No. 2 as the head entity.
4 An entity within a tax consolidated group with SIH No. 3 as the head entity.
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Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows

(a)

Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on hand and at bank

Cash at bank held for Australian Financial Services Licensing purposes

Cash on deposit

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$’000 $000
10,974 8,273
5,000 5,000

85,011 5,011
100,985 18,284

For the purposes of the Statement of Cashflows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and in banks and investments in
money market instruments.

(b)

Committed Financing Facilities

Syndicated unsecured bank loan facilities:

(c)

(d)

Amount used
Amount unused

Committed Finance Facility maturities are:

» November 2018: $100,000,000 3-year revolving facility with Commonwealth Bank of Australia
» November 2018: $100,000,000 3-year revolving facility with Westpac Banking Corporation
* November 2018: $25,000,000 3-year revolving facility with The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd (“BTMU")

¢ November 2020: $25,000,000 5-year revolving facility with BTMU

Reconciliation of Profit for the Financial Year to Net Cash Inflows

Related to Operating Activities

Net profit after tax

Add back / {subtract):

Loan Note interest expense

Income tax expense

Non-cash interest expense

Non-cash depreciation expense

Share of profit/(loss) of associates (less dividends/distributions)
Gain/(loss) on derivative contracts (less distributions)
Changes in net assets and liabilities:

Decrease in current receivables
(Decrease)/increase in current payables

Unpaid equity issue costs

Net cash inflow related to operating activities

Bank Guarantee Facility

205,000

250,000 45,000
250,000 250,000
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$°000 $'000
81,083 88,024
118,582 114,034
26,151 53,762

10 1,370

62 71

4,384 (47,240)
9,437 {1,822)

4,315 864
(3,374) 2,949
{1,662)

240,650 207,350

A bank guarantee of $420,000 equivalent to 12 months’ rent and share of outgoings plus GST has been provided to the landlord in
respect of Spark Infrastructure’s office lease.
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Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Instruments

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Financial Risk Management Objectives

Spark Infrastructure’s treasury function manages the financial risks and co-ordinates access to financial markets. Spark
Infrastructure does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative
purposes. The use of financial derivatives is governed by Spark Infrastructure’s treasury policy, approved by the Board, which
has written principles on the use of financial derivatives. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by
management and Spark Infrastructure’s internal auditors on a regular basis.

Spark Infrastructure’s activities expose it primarily to interest rate risks which are principally managed through the use of interest
rate swap contracts. There is no foreign currency exposure at the Spark Infrastructure level.

Capital Risk Management

Spark Infrastructure manages its capital through the use of a combination of debt and equity to ensure that it will be able to
operate as a going concern and provide appropriate returns to Securityholders.

The capital structure of Spark Infrastructure comprises net debt (borrowings offset by cash and cash equivalents as detailed in
Note 22), Loan Notes attributable to the Securityholders and equity. As the Loan Notes are a long-term instrument and
subordinated, they are regarded as part of equity capital for these purposes. On this basis the total equity capital of Spark
Infrastructure as at 31 December 2016 was $3,199,008,000 (2015: $3,218,059,000) comprising $1,061,724,000 (2015:
$1,061,704,000) in Loan Notes and $2,137,284,000 (2015: $2,156,355,000) in equity attributable to the Securityholders.

The debt covenants under the bank debt facilities require, inter alia, that the gearing at Spark Infrastructure does not exceed
30% on a standalone basis and on a consolidated basis (including its proportionate share of debt of the investment portfolio
assets) and that the gearing does not exceed 75% at any time. During the Current Year Spark Infrastructure complied with all
of its debt covenants.

Spark Infrastructure holds a minority interest in the investment portfolio assets and while it has significant influence, does not
control these businesses and is not in a position to determine their distribution policy alone. The Distribution Policies are set out
in Shareholder Agreements between Spark Infrastructure and its fellow shareholders. Any change in the Distribution Policies
requires a special majority resolution of the shareholders. Further, the revenue of the investment portfolio assets is significantly
reliant on the regulatory determinations of the AER. This could in turn impact on distributions received by Spark Infrastructure.

Significant Accounting Policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of
measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial

liability and equity instrument are disclosed in Note 1.

Categories of Financial Instruments

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 100,985 18,284
Receivables from associates 8,512 10,578
Other financial assets - 216,117
Loans fo associates 680,627 745,601
Loan notes to associates 237,444 237,444
Financial Liabilities
Payables 4,674 8,729
Loan Note interest payable 59,711 59,711
Loans at amortised cost - 203,422
Loan Notes at amortised cost 1,061,724 1,061,704
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Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements

Financial Instruments (continued)

(e)

()

Financial Market Risk

The principal financial market risks that Spark Infrastructure is exposed to is interest rate risk. Note 23(f) below discusses the
strategy adopted to manage the interest rate risk.

Further, the revenue of the investment portfolio is significantly reliant on the regulatory determinations of the AER. This could in
turn impact on distributions received by Spark Infrastructure.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Spark Infrastructure is exposed to interest rate risk if it borrows funds at floating interest rates. Spark Infrastructure’s treasury
policy specifies that interest rate risk on long term drawn term debt is managed principally through the use of interest rate swap
contracts. At 31 December 2016 Spark Infrastructure had no drawn debt failities or interest rate swaps in place.

Interest Rate Swap Contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, Spark Infrastructure agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate
interest amounts calculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable Spark Infrastructure to mitigate the
risk of changing interest rates on debt held. The fair values of interest rate swaps are based on market values of equivalent
instruments at the reporting date.

All interest rate swap contracts on behalf of Spark Infrastructure have previously been entered into by Spark Infrastructure
(Victoria) Pty Limited, a subsidiary of SIH No. 1, which is the borrower of all unsecured facilities of the Group.

Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity

Sensitivity analysis is determined based on exposure fo interest rates for both derivative and non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. An impact of a 100 basis points (“bps”) movement is considered reasonable given
the current level of both short and long term Australian dollar interest rates.

As there was no drawn debt at 31 December 2016, any movement in interest rates would have no impact on the Group’s profit
for the year ended 31 December 2016. For the Prior Year, if interest rates had been 100 basis points higherflower and all other
variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 would have decreasedfincreased by
$3,548,000.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to Spark
Infrastructure.  Spark Infrastructure’s credit risk arises from cash held on deposit and previously for derivative financial
instruments. Spark Infrastructure has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and establishing and
maintaining limits, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. Spark Infrastructure’s exposure and the
credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the transactions, where deemed appropriate, are spread
amongst approved counterparties to minimise risk to any single counterparty.

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk Management

Spark Infrastructure manages liquidity by maintaining adequate cash reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing
facilities, and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. Details of undrawn facilities are provided in Note 22.

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables
The following tables detail Spark Infrastructure’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cashflows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which

Spark Infrastructure can be required to make payment. The tables include undiscounted amounts for both interest and principal
cashflows.
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(i)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(h) Liquidity Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity and Interest Risk Tables (continued)

Spark Infrastructure

Notes to the Financial Statements

Weighted
average
2016 effective Less
interest than 1 1-3 3 months 1.5 5+
rate month Months to1 Year Years Years Total
% pa $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Payabl
ayavies 673 2,477 298 1,187 39 4,674
Commitment fee on
interest bearing liabilities 334 981 1913 3,228
Loan Notes attributable to
Securityholders 2 10.85 59,711 58,870 474,327 11,054,176 11,647,084
Total 1,007 62,188 60,149 477,427 11,054,215 11,654,986
aThe Loan Notes mature in 2105.
Weighted
average
2015 effective Less
interest than 1 1-3 3 months 1-5 5+
rate month Months to1 Year Years Years Total
% pa $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $:000 $°000
Payables - 4,126 2,533 162 1,875 33 8,729
Interest bearing liabilities 2.62 - 1,416 4,927 219,621 - 225,964
Loan Notes atiributable to
Securityholders a 10.85 - 59,711 58,870 474,327 11,172,758 11,765,666
Total 4,126 63,660 63,959 695,823 11,172,791 12,000,358

aThe Loan Notes mature in 2105.

The interest on Loan Notes was fixed at 10.85% per annum on a notional principal balance of $1.25 per Loan Note for an initial 5-
year period ending 30 November 2010, The Restructure in 2010 comprised a partial repayment of the Loan Notes which resulted in
a reduction in the principal amount outstanding on the Loan Notes of $0.60, from $1.25 to $0.65 per Loan Note. No change was
made at that date or the reset date on 30 November 2015 to either the interest rate or the 5-year reset period. For future reset
periods, any change (if made) to the interest rate must be at least the relevant swap rate plus a margin of 4%. In the above tables,
the Loan Note interest rate of 10.85% has been assumed for the remaining term of the Loan Notes post 30 November 2020 (the next
reset date); however the actual rate for each reset period will be subject to finalisation at future points in time.

The amounts for Loan Notes disclosed reflect undiscounted amounts for interest for the remaining term of the Loan Notes plus the
outstanding principal due in 2105. The outstanding principal as at 31 December 2016 was $0.65 per Loan Note (31 December 2015:
$0.65 per Loan Note). The Responsible Entity may defer interest payments, by notice to the Note Trustee and Noteholders. Interest
continues to accrue on any outstanding amount. All outstanding interest must be paid on the next reset date, except to the extent
that monies are owing by the Group to any bank, financial institution or other entity providing financial accommodation (drawn or
undrawn, or secured or unsecured) for over $5,000,000. Deferral of interest payments, and non-payment on a reset date in the
circumstances described above, does not constitute a default.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in these consolidated financial
statements approximates their fair values.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
24.  Parent Entity financial information
(@) Summary financial information

The following aggregate amounts are disclosed in respect of the Parent Entity, Spark Infrastructure Trust:

31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
Financial Position $000 $'000
Current assets 124,345 126,893
Non-current assets 2,085,365 2,383,358
Total Assets 2,209,710 2,510,251
Current liabilities 59,715 53,266
Non-current liabilities 880,618 1,092,285
Total liabilities 940,333 1,145,551
Net Assets 1,269,377 1,364,700
Equity
Issued capital 1,199,107 1,303,392
Retained earnings 70,270 61,308
Total Equity 1,269,377 1,364,700
Year Ended Year Ended
31 Dec 2016 31 Dec 2015
$°000 $'000

Financial Performance
Net profit for the year 8,962 11,039
Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income for the Financial Year 8,962 11,039

(b) Guarantees entered into by the Parent Entity

The Parent Entity has provided financial guarantees in respect of Financing Facilities as disclosed in Note 22(b).
(c) Contingent liabilities of the Parent Entity
The Parent Entity has no contingent liabilities.

(d}) Contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment by the Parent Entity
As at 31 December 2016, the Parent Entity had no contractual commitments (2015: nil).
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Additional Information

The registered office of business of the Trust is as follows:

Level 25, 259 George Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia

Spark Infrastructure
Notes to the Financial Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the
members of Spark Infrastructure Trust

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report
Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Spark Infrastructure Trust (the Trust) and its subsidiaries
(the Group), which comprises the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December
2016, the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies, and the Directors’ declaration.

In our opinion the accompanying financial report of the Group, is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

0] giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 2016 and of
its financial performance for the year then ended; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have
also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has
been given to the Directors of Spark Infrastructure RE Limited (the Directors ), as responsible entity
of the Trust, would be in the same terms if given to the Directors as at the time of this auditor’s

report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial report of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.
Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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Carrying Value of Investments
accounted for using the equity method

As at 31 December 2016 the Group’s
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
includes ‘Investments accounted for using
the equity method’ amounting to $2,495
million, comprising investments in Victoria
Power Networks, SA Power Networks and
TransGrid. Refer to Note 6 ‘Investments
accounted for using the equity method’ for a
summary of balances as at 31 December
2016.

A potential indicator of impairment relating
to the investment in SA Power Networks
was identified. Accordingly, Spark prepared
a fair value less cost to sell impairment
model relating to the investment in SA
Power Networks,

The fair value less cost to sell model is
based on the forecast distributions from the
investment, the projected terminal value of
the Regulated Asset Base (‘RAB’) and the
terminal value of the unregulated business.
The fair value less costs to sell model is
used to confirm that the carrying value of
the investment does not exceed its
recoverable value.

The assessment of the recoverable value of
the investment involves the exercise of
significant judgement in determining the
assumptions to be used in the discounted
cash flow model, including the discount rate,
the RAB multiple, the distributions and the
EBITDA multiples for unregulated activities.
Refer to Note 1(q) ‘Critical Accounting
Estimates and Judgements’.

In conjunction with Deloitte valuation
specialists, our procedures included but
were not limited to:

« understanding the process for the
preparation and review of the
impairment model;

e evaluating the discounted cash flow
model developed to assess the
recoverable value of the investment in
SA Power Networks, including critically
assessing the following key
assumptions:

o discount rate;
o RAB multiple;
o distributions;

o EBITDA multiples for
unregulated activities

with reference to external data where
relevant;

« performing sensitivity analysis on a
number of assumptions, including the
discount rate and the appropriate
terminal value based on RAB multiples
for regulated activities;

e« on a sample basis testing the
mathematical accuracy of the discounted
cash flow model; and

« evaluating the adequacy of disclosures in
the financial report.

We concur with the assessment that the
carrying value of the investment does not
exceed its recoverable value.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
Directors’ Report which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, the other information
also includes the following documents which will be included in the annual report (but does not
include the financial report and our auditor’s report thereon): the additional ASX Disclosures and the

Shareholder Information which are expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not

and will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information
identifiled above and, In doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the
date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the additional ASX Disclosures and the Shareholder Information, if we conclude that
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to the
directors and use our professional judgement to determine the appropriate action.

Responsibilities of the Directors’ for the Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may Iinvolve collusion, forgery, Iintentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financiai
report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s« Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the financial report.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial report of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the Remuneration Report

Opinion on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report of Spark Infrastructure Trust and its Consolidated
Entities included in pages 18 to 45 of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2016.

In our opinion, the Remuneration Report of Spark Infrastructure Trust and its Consolidated Entities,
for the year ended 31 December 2016, has been prepared in accordance with section 300A of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Responsibilities

The Directors of the Company have voluntarily presented the Remuneration Report which has been
prepared in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

T&losfe Fovche “Tohmrtso

DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU

Jason Thorne

Partner

Chartered Accountants
Sydney, 27 February 2017

85






	Cover letter - FY 2016 results announcement - 27 Feb 2017
	FY 2016 - 4E - FINAL
	FY 2016 - Spark Infrastructure Financial Statements - FINAL

